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LIES

2007 Full Year Results and Strategy Update

A webcast providing commentary on the results and strategy by Chief Executive John
Ellice-Flint and Chief Financial Officer Peter Wasow is available at www.santos.com

Financial summary

s Production of 59.1 mmboe and sales revenue of $2.5 billion, in-line with forecast

e EBITDAX of $1,733 million, in-line with market consensus

* Net profit after tax of $441 million down 32%, negatively impacted by higher
DD&A and one-off items

« Final dividend of 20 cents per share, full year dividend unchanged at 40 cents
per share

+ Strong 2007 reserves replacement ratio of 175% and 178% on a 1P and 2P basis
respectively

» Contingent resources increased 15% to 2.6 billion boe

Santos today reported earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and
exploration (EBITDAX) of $1,733 million and net profit after tax (NPAT) of $441 million for the

year ended 31 December 2007.

The operating result, as measured by EBITDAX, was within analyst consensus expectations,
and reflected a 3% decline in production volumes combined with an increase in the

proportion of lower-margin gas produced.

Higher commodity prices were evident across Santos’ portfolio, with the average gas price
increasing by 6% to $3.95 per gigajoule. A 19% increase in US dollar oil price was offset by
the stronger Australian dollar exchange rate. In Australian dollar terms, the oil price of

$92.10 was 3% above 2006.

The NPAT result was lower than analyst estimates due largely to increased depreciation and
depletion expense as a result of higher future development costs which are being felt across

Santos Limited ABN B0 007 330 923
GPO Box 2433, Adelaide SA 5001
Telephone: +61 8 8116 3000 Facsimlle: +61 88116 5131
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the industry. In addition, costs associated with the Moonie to Brisbane pipeline incident ($26
million), an $8 million loss on embedded derivatives in sales contracts and a small increase
in provisioning for the Sidoarjo mudflow incident ($8 million) had an impact.

For the fourth successive year, Santos increased its year end reserves position.

Commenting on the 2007 results, Santos’ Managing Director, Mr John Ellice-Flint said the
Company’s operating performance was broadly in line with its sales and production guidance
provided at this time last year.

“Santos’ operating performance in 2007 was sound, aithough the lower profit reflects industry
cost pressures, which are impacting on operating expenses and expected future
development costs.

“Historically, Santos’ focus has been on the domestic Australian market, where we are the
largest gas producer. Looking forward, our strategy will leverage our portfolio to the much
higher prices and volumes available for our resources in Asia,” he said.

Dividend

Santos’ final dividend was maintained at 20 cents per share, fully franked. The final dividend
will be paid on 31 March 2008 to registered shareholders as at 3 March 2008.

Total dividends declared during 2007 were 40 cents per share, unchanged from 2006.
Reserves Growth
A table detailing the reserves position as at 31 December 2007 is attached to this release.

On a proven (1P) basis, year-end reserves increased to 485 mmboe, after allowing for the
2007 production of 59.1 mmboe. This represents a 1P reserves replacement ratio {RRR) of
175% for 2007, and 178% on a 3 year rolling-average basis.

On a proven and probable (2P) basis, year-end reserves increased to 879 mmboe. This
represents a 2P RRR of 178% for 2007, and 234% on a 3 year rolling-average basis.

Contingent resources increased by 15% to over 2.6 billion boe, or over 14.5 trillion cubic feet
(tcf).

The reserves additions in 2007 were mostly from organic growth sources, with acquisitions
and divestments being insignificant in the final result.

Commenting on this increase, Mr Ellice-Flint said, “Our reserve replacement performance
over the |last 3 years places us within the top quartile of our peer companies globally.”

“And this rate of replacement is only half the story. Our replacement cost over the last 3
years has averaged A$12.33 per barrel as a result of our strategy to secure high quality

Santos Limited ABN 80 007 530 823
GPO Box 2453, Adelaide SA 5001
Telephone: +61 8 8116 3000 Facsimlle: +61 8 8116 5131
www.santos.com

Page 2ot 5



SANTOS Ltd 21/02/72008 8:53:09 AM PAGE 3/137 Fax Server

Santos ASX/Media Release

resources early; before market or energy price discontinuities have made them more difficult
or costly to capture.” he said.

“Santos’s mean contingent resources of over 14.5 tcf provide the opportunity to grow 2P
reserves by over 300% from known discoveries.

“These contingent resources are clearly focussed on LNG opportunities, and with Gladstone
LNG providing linkage between domestic and export prices, 100% of our contingent
resources are now exposed to regional energy pricing.

“Coupled with rapid growth in Asian economies and the consequent growth in energy
demand, timeframes to monetise gas resources are shortening, and as a result the inherent
value of these resources is increasing.”

Strategy Update

2008 marks a pivotal year in the implementation of Santos' strategy to gain exposure to
global prices for our large scale resources, which will transform the Company through
significant volume growth and margin expansion.

Sufficient coal seam gas now exists in eastern Australia for Santos to develop a large scale
LNG export business. The creation of this export channel will underpin a fundamental shift in
the value of Santos’ eastern Australian gas resources as the arbitrage between Asian and
domestic energy prices closes.

Santos was the early mover in recognising and capturing this oppertunity, and has positioned
itself by amassing a large, high quality coal seam gas resource position and by leading the
development of an export LNG project at Gladstone.

The Gladstone LNG project represents the culmination of over two years of engineering and
analysis, and Santos is well advanced in delivering this project. A freehold site for the
liquefaction plant in the Port of Gladstone has been secured, pre-FEED discussions with
engineering contractors are well advanced, federal environmental referrals for all aspects of
the project have been lodged, and the project has been designated a project of State
Significance by the Queensland Government.

Capital Investment
Total capital investment in 2007 was $1,307 million, unchanged from 2006.

The 2008 outlook is for higher capital investment totalling approximately $1,500 million, with
the allocation reflecting a balance between near term production imperatives and the
transtormational growth projects which provide exposure to higher global pricing.

Near term projects to extend our base business include Henry, Reindeer, Kipper, Cooper Qil
and Phase 2 of the Oyong field development.

Transformational projects include Gladstone LNG, coal seam gas exploitation and PNG LNG.

Santos Limited ABN 60 007 550 923
GPO Box 2453, Adelalde SA 5001
Telephone: +61 8 8116 53000 Facsimile: +61 88116 5131
www santos.com
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tn exploration, our 2008 plan of $200 million is focussed on a stranger, balanced, moderate
risk, material exploration program in Australia and Asia.

The Santos strategy of focusing on Gladstone LNG benefits from strong government suppont,
industry leading reserves and a proven track record of Coal Seam Gas production.

The increases in the Company's investment program necessary to execute the strategy will
be funded from cash flow and portfolio rationalisation. Importantly, we have received strong
preliminary interest from potentia! partners in relation to Gladstone LNG, and are evaluating
the merits of introducing a suitable joint venture partner.

Sidoarjo Mudflow Incident Update

The Sidoarjo mud flow incident that occurred in May 2006 within the area of the Brantas
Production Sharing Contract (*PSC") continues. Santos holds an 18% non-operated interest
in the PSC. Efforts to contain and manage the mudflow are within the control of the Sidoarjo
Mud Mitigation Agency appointed by the President of Indonesia.

The South Jakarta District Court recently dismissed a claim against a number of the
defendants, including a Santos subsidiary, regarding the incident. The Court cited natural
causes as the likely cause of the incident. The claimant has appealed the decision.

Santos, while not accepting any liability in relation to the incident, its ongoing management or
any remediation of the area, has increased its provision for the incident by A$8 million in its
2007 accounts. Further detail is provided in note 3 to Santos’ 2007 year end accounts.

Production Guidance and Qutlaak

Santos’ 2008 guidance is for production of between 56 and 58 mmboe.

Beyond that, the Company anticipates a return to growth in 2009, followed by further
increases in production in 2010 and beyond as CSG production ramps-up, and new projects
such as Henry, Kipper, Chim-Sao (formerly named Blackbird) and Reindeer come on-line.
Looking forward to 2013/14, Santos anticipates a step change in production as the Gladstone
LNG, PNG LNG and potentially Darwin LNG expansion projects come on-line. Revenue and

margin growth will accelerate ahead of production growth as the Company’s strategy to
expose its large scale resource base to global pricing is realised.

2007 Year End Reserves summary attached.

Santos stock symbols: STO (Australian Securities Exchange), STOSY (NASDAQ
ADR), Ref #82-34 (Securities Exchange Commission)

Santos Limited ABN 80 007 550 923
GPO Box 2433, Adelaide SA 3001
Telephone: +61 8 8116 3000 Facsimlile: +61 88116 3131
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The table below shows the breakdown of reserves as at 31 December 2007.

PROVEN PLUS PROBABLE RESERVES (SANTOS SHARE)} BY ACTIVITY

Sales gas (incl. Crude oil Condensate LPG Total
ethane & LNG) mmbbl mmbbl 000 mmboe
PJ tonnes
Reserves year end 2006 3949 75 43 2895 819
Production -242 -12 -4 -243 -59
Additicns 551 16 4 330 117
Acquisitions/Divestments 13 0 o 0 2
Estimated reserves year end 2007 4271 79 43 2982 879
PROVEN PLUS PROBABLE RESERVES (SANTOS SHARE) YEAR END 2007 BY AREA
Sales gas [incl. Crude oil Condensate LPG Total
Area ethane & LNG) mm bbl mmbbl 000 mmboe
£J tonnes
Cooper Basin 783 39 11 1560 197
Onshore Northem Territory 113 2 1 0 23
Cifshore Northern Territory 325 0 20 1011 84
Eastern Queensiand 1667 0 0 14 287
Southern Australia 404 0 5 397 77
Carnarvon Australia 768 34 6 0 171
PNG 0 1 s] 0 1
Indonesia 187 3 o 0 35
Bangladesh 24 Q 0 o] 4
Total 4271 79 43 2982 B79
RESERVES (SANTOS SHARE)
{(mmboe)
Year End Production Additions Acq/ Div Y ear End
2006 2007
1P Reserves 441 -59 100 3 485
2P Reserves 819 -59 117 2 879
2C Contingent Besources 2248 0 359 -12 2595

Note - 2C Contingent Resources previously called "Best Estimate Resources”. Name has been changed to be

consistent with the updated SPE/WPC/AAPG/SPEE Guidelines issued in March 2007

Ends

Santos Limited ABN 80 007 350 823
GPO Box 2455, Adelalde SA 5001

Telephone: +61 8 8116 3000 Facsimile: +61 88116 5131

www . santos.com
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SANTOS LTD
Appendix 4E
Preliminary Final Report under ASX Listing Rule 4.3A

For the period ended 31 December 2007

ABN Pravious corresponding peried
|  sooo7ssoszs | 31 December 2006 |

Resulls for announcement to the market

$A million
Revenue * Down 9.4% to 2,517.6
Underlying protit after tax Down 27.5% to 485.1
Profit after tax attributable to members Down 31.5% to 440.6
Net profit for the period attributable to members Down 31.5% to 4406
’ Amount per Franked amount per

Dividends security security at 30% tax .
Interim Dividends

Ordinary securities 20.0¢ 20.0¢

Preference securities $2.8592 $2.8592
Final Dividends

Ordinary securities 20.0¢ 20.0¢

Preference securities $2.9983 $2.9983
Record date for determining entittements to the dividends: 3 March 2008

* Revenue includes sales and other revenue from continuing and discontinued operations.

This report is based on financial statements which have been audited,

The 2007 Consolidated Financial Report, Commentary on Results and
Media Release dated 21 February 2008 form part of and should be read in
conjunction with this Preliminary Final Report (Appendix 4E).
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Santos Lid
Financial Commentary to Appendix 4E

The following comments should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Report for the Year ended 31 December 2007

1. Consolidated Income Statement
Net Profit for the period ($440.6 million, down by $202.8 million =31.5%)

Net profit after income tax decreased by $202.8 million to $440.6 million. Earnings per share for 2007
decreased by 33% to 68.9 cents,

An analysis of the change in net profit after tax is set out below.,
Dividends

During the year Santos Ltd paid fully franked dividends of $235.1 million on ordinary shares and
$33.5 million on redeemable convertible preference shares for a total of $268.6 million (2006: $268.5
million).

The Directors have declared a final dividend for 2007 of 20 cents per ordinary share, fully franked
(20086: 20 cents, fully franked) and a preferential, non cumulative fully franked dividend of $2.9983 per
redeermable convertible preference share, payable on 31 March 2008.

Product Sales ($2,488.5 million, down by $261.8 million or 8.5%)

Total sales revenue for the 12 months to 31 December 2007 was $2,488.5 million, down 9.5% on the
previous record of $2,750.3 million achieved in 2006. The lower revenue refiects a 5.9 mmboe (9%)
decrease in sales volumes ($332.5 million) and a 15% appreciation in the AUD/USD exchange rate
($252.0 million) partially offset by higher prices {$322.7 million}. The 2006 comparative has been
restated to exclude an $18.8 million embedded derivative gain which has been reclassilied as a
financial gain.

Crude oil sales of $1,036.8 million were $165.2 million lower primarily due to 16 % lower sales
volumes ($196.1 millien) arising from lower production from the Mutineer-Exeter field and the timing
of shiprments from other Offshore Australia fields. Anincrease in USD base oil prices ($187.8 million)
was largely offset by the appreciation in the average AUD/USD exchange rates ($157.0 million).

Condensate/naphtha sales of $330.1 million decreased by $67.2 million due to a 14% decrease in
sales volumes arising predominantly from the lower Bayu-Undan net entitlement following the shift
from the Cost Recovery to Profit Qil phase in the PSC. Increased base USD prices ($42.7 million)
were oflset by the appreciation on the AUD/USD exchange rate {($49.9 million).

Liquelied petroleum gas ("LPG") revenues decreased by $29.3 million to $177.5 million due to 16%
lower sales volumes also resulting from the lower Bayu-Undan net entittement and lower Cooper
Basin LPG production. Increased base USD prices {$29.5 million) were offset by the appreciation on
the AUD/USD exchange rate ($26.8 millian).

Sales gas, ethane and LNG revenues of $344.1 million were in line with 2006. Lower sales volumes
{6%) were largely due to lower contracted gas sales into SA and NSW from the Cooper Basin offset
by higher Bayu-Undan LNG sales. Gas prices in 2007 (including LNG) averaged $3.95/GJ compared
with $3.71/GJ in 2006. The increase in average gas prices was due to higher average prices in both
the eastern and western Australian gas markets partly clfset by the higher AUD/USD exchange rate
on Bayu-Undan LNG sales.
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Other Income ($12.1 million, down by $51.8 million -81.1%)

Other income of $12.1 million includes a gain on sales of investments of $33.4 million resulting from
sale of shares held in Queensland Gas Company, Methanol Australia and lcon Energy, and a $46.8
miliion adjustmert to the Company's share of Bayu-Undan profits for the periods prior 1o 31
December 2006 following the redetermination of interests. This is largely offset by a $67.7 million
loss on the sale of the Company's USA inerests.

2006 also included $21.8 million of insurance recoveries in respect of the Sidoarjo mudiflow incident,

Cost of Sales ($1,452.1 million, up by $114.7 million +8.6%)

Production Costs

s Field production costs of $448.8 million were $57.9 million higher than in 2006. Volume
effects added $27.6 million to production costs and can be attributed to:

o New sources of production ($26.6 million) reflecting commencement of production
fram Qyong, and Maleoc and Darwin LNG producing for the full year,; and

o the net effect of acquisitions ($1.0 million).

Cost increases added $35.3 million to production costs, These increases primarily resulted
from the ramp up of CSG activity in 2007; higher Cooper Qil production optimisation and
well repair program and increased trucking costs relating to the Moonie to Brisbane pipeline
failure; and higher Bayu-Undan costs from the total plant and pipeline shutdown and
increased equity, and higher Cooper Gas costs.

Sale of the Company's USA assets resulted in reduced production costs of $5.0 million for
2007.

« Product stocks increased by $33.8 million during 2007. This was predominantly due to
higher crude inventories resulting from SWQ crude being trucked to Moomba following the
closure of the Moonie to Brisbane pipeline and a build up of gas inverteries in preparation
for the Moomba plant outage aver year end, and higher unit costs of production.

Pipeline Tariffs, Tolls and Other

Pipeline tariffs of $68.9 million are $18.1 million higher in 2007 due to remediation costs relating
to the Moonie 1o Brisbane pipeline incident ($20.0 million) oliset by a lower pro-rata share ol
Varanus Island plant tariffs ($2.0 million) resulting from higher external party throughput.

Rovyalties and Excise ($80.1 million, down $33.1 million -29.2%)
Rovyalties of $80.1 million are $33.1 million lower than in 2006 due to lower sales revenue and a
refund of 2008 royalties ($9 million).

PRRT and Similar Taxes ($111.2 million, up $81.2 million +270.7%)

PRRT and other similar taxes of $111.2 million are $81.2 million higher primarily due to the
utilisation of all brought forward deductible expenditure which resulted in higher PRRT expense
and the commencement of Additional Prolits Tax for Bayu-Undan.

Third Party Gas Purchases ($20.1 million, down $49.0 million -70.9%)

Gas purchases of $20.1 million are $49.0 million lower due to lower Cooper Basin gas
purchases. In 2006 gas purchases were utilised to manage a step down in contract volumes
and to build gas inventory tor high demand winter months.
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* Depreciation and Depletion ($756.8 million, up by $66.9 million +9.7%})
» Depletion
Depletion of $431.3 million is $8.0 million higher than in 2006. The beneiits of reserves
additions were outweighed by higher future development costs resulting in higher average
depletion rates which increased depletion by $60.2 million, primarily for the Cooper Basin.
Lower production volumes reduced depletion by $29.2 million. The sale of the Company's
USA assets resufted in no depletion charges for 2007 (2006 $23.0 million).

s Depreciation
Depreciation of $325.5 million is $58.9 million higher than in 2006. A full year of production
from Casino, Darwin LNG and Maleo, the commencement of Oyong production and the
acquisition of Bangladesh interests added $14.2 million to depreciation. Additional field
plant and equipment, particularly in the Cooper Basin; and accelerated depreciation on
closure of the Moonie to Brisbane pipeline added $48.8 million.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ($89.6 million, up by $15.8 million +21.4%)

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $89.6 million are $15.8 million higher in 2007
principally due to costs related to business development activity.

Change in Fair Value of Financial Assets Desighated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
{$11.9 million loss, 2006: $18.8 million gain)

An $11.9 million loss has been recorded in 2007 for the revaluation of derivatives embedded in sales
contracts. The loss/(gain} on embedded derivatives has been disclosed separately in 2007, In 2006
the gain of $18.8 million was classified as part of product sales revenue.

Exploration and Evaluation Expensed ($234.8 million down by $113.0 million -32.5%}

Exploration and evaluation expenditure expensed in 2007 was $234.8 million (2006: $347.8 million}.
The amount expensed relates to studies, seismic and unsuccessful wells primarily in offshore
Australia, Vietnam, Indonesia, Egypt and the Cooper Basin. A further $8.0 million has been
expensed in respect of the Sidearjo mudflow incident. Costs incurred in the evaluation of new
ventures and exploration opportunities that have either not met Santos’ internal investment criteria or
not resulled in a successful bid have alsc been written ofi.

Financial Expenses ($152.7 million, up by $17.1 million +12.6%)

Interest expense has increased due to higher interest rates and higher average net debt, The
weighted average inlerest rate for the Group (allowing for interest rate swap contracts) as at 31
Cecember 2007 was 6.62% compared to 6.33% in 2006.

Income tax expense ($160.4 million, down by $160.9 million —50.1%)

The effective tax rate is 27% which is lower than the 2006 effective tax rate of 33% and the prime
facie tax rate of 30%. Factors reducing the effective tax rate include the recognition of tax benefits on
commencement of production in Sampang PSC, recoupment of capital losses on the sale of shares in
Methano! Australia, QGC and Icon Energy and over provision of prior period tax. Parntially offsetting
these items are non-deductible losses from overseas operations, principally exploration and
evaluation expensed.
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2. Consolidated Balance Sheet
Qverview

The Group's net assets decreased by $45.0 million (1.3%) during 2007 to $3,310.5 million principally
as the $300 million share buy-back and dividends paid marginally exceeded profit for the year.

Assets

Current assets of $1,133.5 million were $73.0 million higher than in 2006 predominantly due to higher
pefroleum stock in the Cooper Basin ($38.5 million), additional interest rate swaps ($59.9 million),
higher trade and other receivables ($119.9 million) partially offset by the reclassification of US
exploration and evaluation assets and oil and gas assets to current assets available for sale in 2008
{$142.8 million).

Nen-current assets were $6,186.7 million compared to $5,842.4 million at the end of 2008, an
increase of $344.3 million. Capital expenditure in 2007 for exploration, delineation and development,
capitalised increases in restoration provisions and acquisitions of oil and gas assets amounted to
1,438.3 million, of which $234.8 million was expensed in 2007 as unsuccessiul exploration.

These increases were offset in part by depreciation and depletion charges of $759.3 million, and
fareign currency translation of oil and gas assets of $392.9 million.

Current Liabilities

Current liabilities of $931.4 million were $177.4 million lower mainly due to $130.4 million of long-term
netes maturing in 2007, repayment of commercial papers $65.0 million and a decrease in current tax
labilities of $183.0 million partially offset by higher trade and other payables $219.6 million.

Net Debt

Net debt of $1,895.5 million was $445.8 million higher than at the end of 2006 prirmnarily as a result of
the $300.0 million share buy-back undertaken during the year and acquisition activity.

The group’s net debt / net debt plus equity ratio has increased from 30.2% in 2006 to 36.4% at the
end of 2007.
Equity

Retained earnings decreased by $49.6 million to $1,251.8 million at year end. The decrease primarily
reflects the 2007 net profit after tax of $440.6 million less dividends paid during the year of $268.6
million and the fully franked dividend component of the share buy-back $231.2 million.

lssued capital at 31 December 2007 was $2,331.6 million, an increase of $77.2 million and
comprised:

*  586.0 millien fully paid ordinary shares {(2006: 598.5 million),
« 0.1 million ordinary shares paid to 1 cent {(2006: 0.1 million}, and

+ 6.0 million redeemable converible preference shares (2006: 6.0 million).
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3. Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Operating Cash Flows ($1,213.9 million inflow, decrease of $336.4 million - 21.7%)

Lower operating cash flows are a result of decreased sales volumes and increased payments for
royalties, excise, PRRT and income taxes, parily offset by higher product prices and lower payments
to suppliers.

Investing Cash Flows ($1,265.5 million outflow, higher by $4.4 million)

Capital expenditure payments increased by $104.4 million from $1,153.1 million in 2006 to $1,257.5
million in 2007 largely as a result of the timing of the work program and related payments.

The Company acquired controlling interests in the following subsidiaries during 2007 for $75.7 million:
» Petroleum Ventures B.V.
» Gidgealpa Oil Pty Lid
« Bronco Energy Pty Ltd
« Cairn Energy Bangladesh Limited

In 2007 the Company received proceeds from the sale of non-current assets of $6.7 million {2006:
$66.3 million). Proceeds from the sale of controlled entities of $73.4 million {(2006: $nil) were
received related to the disposal of operations in the USA.

The Company also received proceeds of $52.2 million (2006: $nil) from the sale of equity securities
available for sale.

Financing Cash Flows ($54.3 million inflow, higher by $366.3 million)

The group paid $217.0 million of fully franked dividends during the year (2006: $231.7 million) and
made net drawdowns of $479.5 million (2006: $86.0 million net repayments} resulting in an increase
in the group's borrowings. Proceeds from issues of ordinary shares totalled $93.8 million {2006:
$5.7 million).

Santos Lid undertock an off-market buy-back of its ordinary shares, purchasing these shares for
$302.0 million (2006: $nil), including transaction costs.
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SANTOS Ltd

SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2008 2007 2008
Continuing  Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinuad Total
Note $milllon $million $milllon Jmillion $miltion $miflion $million $million
Product sales 2 24584 301 2,488.5 2,6849.1 81.2 2,750.3 9743 1,187.1
Cost of sales 3 {1,4486.3) {5.8) {1.452.1) (1,302.2) {35.2) (1,337.4) (643.3) (703.3}
Gross profit 10121 243 10364 1,386.9 26.0 1,4129 331.0 4838
Other revenue 2 291 - 291 290 - 290 901.3 33
Other income 2 81.7 (69.6) 12.1 250 388 83.9 158 6.1
Cther expenses 3 (317.8) (20.5) {338.3) (325.4) (92.7) 418.1) 169.7 {401.4)
Operating profit/{loss) before net financing
costs 805.1 {65.8) 739.3 1,116.5 (27.8} 1,087.7 1,417.6 119.8
Financial income 5 136 0.8 14.4 12.0 08 126 188.8 369
Financial expenses & {152.7) - (152.7) {135.5} (0.1) {135.8) {294.4) {169.6)
Net financing {costs)/income {139.1) 0.8 {138.3) {123.5) 0.5 {123.0} (105.6) {132.7}
Prafit/(loss) before tax 666.0 (65.0} 601.0 8920 (27.3) 964.7 1,312.0 (12.9}
Income tax expense 6 (158.8) (0.6) {160.4} {321.1) (0.2 (321.3) {38.0) (97.6)
Net profit/{loss) for the period 508.2 '(65.6) 440.6 £870.8 {27.5) 643.4 1,274.0 {110.5)
Attributable to:
Minority interest - - - - - - - -
Equity holders of Santos Ltd 506.2 (65.6) 440.6 6709 (27.5} 643.4 1,274.0 {110.5)
506.2 {65.6} 440.8 670.9 {27.5) 643.4 1,274 0 {110.5)
Eamings per share atiributable to the
ordinary equity holders of Santos Ltd (¢)
Basic eamings per share 24 80.0 68.9 1074 1028
Diluted eamings per share 24 78.9 68.7 103.1 98.9
Dividends per share ($)
Ordinary shares 23 0.40 0.40
Redeemable preference shares 23 5.5864 5.0575

The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes 1o the consolidated financial statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD

2007 2006 2007 2006
Note $Smillion $million $million $million

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 200.5 158.7 56.8 52.8
Trade and other receivables 9 607.4 487.5 2085 = 2357
Inventories 10 241.5 167.4 115.9 75.0
Derivative financial instruments 11 84.1 36.1 - 1.3
1,133.5 849.7 381.2 364.8
Assets classified as held for sale 7 - 210.8 - -
Total current assets 1,133.5 1,060.5 381.2 364.8

Non-current assets

Receivables 9 - - 1,304.8 1.263.8
Exploration and evaluation assets 12 332.4 360.3 15.5 20.7
Qil and gas assets 13 5,584.4 52327 1,650.1 1,719.5
Other land, buildings, plant and equipment 14 134.8 117.2 107.4 94.2
Available-for-sale financial assets 16 15.6 452 15.6 20.3
Other financial assets 17 32.7 11.9 3,488.4 2,841.7
Deferred tax assets 18 86.8 75.1 - -
Total non-current assets 6,186.7 5,842.4 6,581.8 5,960.2
Total assets 7,320.2 6,902.9 6,963.0 6,325.0
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 661.4 441.8 642.9 562.9
Deferred income 12.0 6.4 1.7 1.7
Interest-hearing loans and borrowings 20 103.1 289.3 - -
Current tax liabilities 30.5 213.5 28.7 207.8
Provisions 21 112.4 132.1 65.1 60.4
Other current liabilities 22 12.0 8.9 - -
931.4 1,092.0 738.4 832.8

Liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale 7 - 16.8 - -
Total current liabilities 931.4 1,108.8 738.4 832.8
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 8.8 11.3 - -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 20 1,992.9 1,360.4 2,478.2 2,583.6
Deferred tax liahilities 18 525.6 517.5 54.1 65.3
Provisions 21 543.6 541.8 167.8 184.8
Other non-current liabilities 22 7.4 7.6 - -
Total non-current liabilities 3,078.3 2.438.6 2,700.1 2,833.7
Total liabilities 4,009.7 3,547.4 3,438.5 3,666.5
Net assets 3,310.5 3,355.5 3,624.5 2.658.5
Equity
Issued capital 23 2,331.6 22544 2,331.6 2,254.4
Reserves 23 (272.9) (200.3) 7.4 2.4
Retained earnings 23 1.251.8 1,301.4 1,185.5 401.7

Equity attributable to equity holders of Santos
Ltd 3,310.5 3,355.5 3,524.5 2,658.5
Equity attributable to minority interest - - -

Total equity 3,310.5 3,355.5 3,524.5 2,658.5

The balance sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 20086
Note  $million  $miltion  $million  S$million
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 2,555.1 2,860.6 1,036.6 1,267.4
Dividends received - - 874.0 -
Interest received 14.2 12.6 188.7 36.9
Overriding royalties received 14.7 14.7 220 233
Insurance proceeds received 18.3 954 - 36.0
Pipeline tariffs and other receipts 83.0 29.2 2.0 49.4
Paymenis to suppliers and employees (808.4) {915.7) (313.4) {393.6)
Royalty, excise and PRRT {(payments)/refunds (150.0) {94.2) (56.3) 21.0
Borrowing costs paid (128.4) {118.0) (280.6) {156.6)
Income taxes paid (384.6) (333.3) (231.1) (282.9)
Net cash provided by operating activities 28 1,213.9 1,550.3 1,241.9 600.9
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for:
Exploration and evaluation expenditure (279.8) (377.0) (80.5) (47.9)
Qil and gas assets expenditure (919.4) (721.2) (324.3) (267.9)
Other land, buildings, plant and equipment . (58.5) (54.9) (47.7) {49.5)
Acquisitions of oil and gas assets (33.5) (113.6) - {14.8)
Acquisitions of controlled entities (75.7}) (5.2) {(4.5) -
Restoration expenditure (34.4) (35.0) (2.7) (4.2)
Share subscriptions in controlled entities - - (245.2) {176.0)
Other investing activities 3.5 (20.5) {1.8) (5.1)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 0.6 66.3 - 16.1
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued
operations:
Non-current assets 6.1 - - -
Controlled entities 734 - - -
Proceeds from disposal of other investments 52.2 - 23.8 -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,265.5) (1,261.1) {682.9) (549.3)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (217.0) (231.7) (217.0) {231.7)
Proceeds from issues of ordinary shares 93.8 5.7 938 57
Off-market buy-back of ordinary shares {302.0) - (302.0) -
Repayments of borrowings {1,703.1) (1,592.8) - -
Drawdown of borrowings 2.182.6 1,506.8 - -
Receipts from controlled entities - - 166.8 2151
Payments to controlled entities - - {296.4) (52.9)
Net cash provided by/{used in) financing
activities 54,3 (312.0)  (554.8) (63.8)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 2.7 (22.8) 4.2 (12.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 200.0 229.2 52.8 65.5
Effects of exchange rate changes on the
balances of cash held in foreign currencies (2.2) {6.4) {0.2) (0.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
56.8 52.8

year 8 200.5 200.0

The cash flow statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the consoclidated financial

statements.



SANTOS Lta 21/02/2008 8:53:09 AM PAGE 167137 Fax Server

4

SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Note $million  8million  $million  $million
Foreign exchange translation differences (101.8) {81.6) - -
Net gain on hedge of net investment in foreign
subsidiaries 62.6 52.0 - -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets, net of tax 17.4 7.6 14.7 (2.0)
Share-based payment transactions 30 5.2 2.6 5.2 2.6
Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan, net
of tax 29 4.4 {6.3) 4.4 (6.3)
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in
equity {(12.2) (25.7) 24.3 (5.7)

Transfers {net of any related tax):
Transfer to profit on sale of available-for-sale

financial assets {23.6) - {(8.7) _
Transfer to profit on disposal of foreign
operation (27.2) - - -
Profit/{loss) for the period 440.6 643.4 1,274.0 {110.5)
Total recognised income and expense for the
period 377.6 617.7 1,288.6 {116.2)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of Santos Ltd 23 377.6 B817.7 1,288.6 (116.2)
Minarity interest - - - -

377.6 617.7 1,288.6 {116.2)

Other movements in equity arising from transactions with owners as owners are set out in note 23.

The statements of recognised income and expense are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial report of Santos Lid {the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2007 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 21 February 2008,

Santos Ltd (the parent) is a company limited by shares incorporated in Australia whose shares are
publicly traded on the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX") and is the ultimate parent entity in the
Group. The consolidated financial repart of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007
comprises the Company and its controlled entities (“the Group™).

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Directors’
Report.

{a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting
Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial
statements and notes of the Group and the Company comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs").

Basis of preparation
The financiat report is presented in Australian dollars.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
instruments and available-for-sale financial assets, which are measured at fair value.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998
(updated by Class Order 05/641 effective 28 July 2005) and in accordance with that Class
Order, amounts in the financial report and Directors’ Report have been rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Adoption of new accounting standards

The Group has adopted the following standards and Interpreta‘ltons and all consequential
amendments, which became applicable on 1 January 2007. Adoption of these standards
and interpretations has only affected the disclosure in these financial statements. There has
not been any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

AASB 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (issued in October 2006}
AASB 2005-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AASB 132, 101,
114, 117, 133, 139, 1, 4, 1023 and 1038)
* Interpretation 10  Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group has also early adopted the amendments to Australian Accounting Standards as
set out in AASB 20074 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
ED 151 and Other Amendments.
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6
SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

{c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The following standards, amendments and interpretations were available for early adoption
but have not been applied by the Group in these financial statements:

. AASB 8 QOperating Segments
. AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (issued in September 2007)
. AASB 123 Borrowing Costs
. AASB 20071 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
Interpretation 17
. AASE 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB &
. AASB 2007-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 123
AASB 2007-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
AASB 2007-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 101
. Interpretation 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions
. Interpretation 14 AASB 119 - The Limit on A Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The Group plans to adopt the above standards from 1 January 2009 and the interpretations
from 1 January 2008. The initial application of the standards and interpretations are not
expected to have an impact on the financial results of the Company and the Group.

The following Australian Accounting Standards Board interpretation was also available for
early adoption but has not been applied by the Company in these financial statements:

*» Interpretation 1003 Australian Petroleumn Resource Rent Tax

The interpretation specifies that Australian petroleum resource rent tax falls within the scope
of AASB 112 Income Taxes, and is applicable 1o annual reporling pericds ending on or after
30 June 2008. The Group plans to adopt the Interpretation from 1 January 2008.

Had PRRT and similar taxes been accounted for as an income tax under AASB 112, a
deferred tax liability of $306.5 million would have been recognised (2006: deferred tax
liability $210.0 million). Profit before tax would have increased by $116.6 million
{2006: $44.8 million), the income tax expense attributed to these taxes would have been
$213.1 million (2006: $251.3 million expense), and profit after tax would have decreased by
$96.5 million (2006; $206.5 million decrease).

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistenlly to all periods
presented in the consolidated financial report

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group.
Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at their cost of acquisition in the Company’s financial
statements.

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising
from intragroup ftransactions are eliminated in preparing the consoclidated financial
staternents.

Minority interests

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated entities are allocated their share of net
profit after tax in the income statement, and are identified separately from the Group’s equity
in those entities. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’'s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Where the minority interest has losses greater than its equity interest in the
consolidated subsidiary, the excess and any further losses applicable to the minority interest
are allocated against the Group’s interest. [f the minority interest subsequently reports
profits, the profits are allocated to the Group until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group have been fully recovered.

Jointly controlled assets

Santos’ exploration and production activities are often conducted through joint venture
arrangements govemed by joint operating agreements, production sharing contracts or
similar contractua! relationships. A summary of the Group's interests in its significant joint
venlures is included in note 27,

A joint venture characterised as a jointly controlled asset involves the joint control, and often
the joint ownership, by the venturers of one or more assets contributed to, or acquired for the
purpose of, the joint venture and dedicated to the purposes of the joint venture. The assets
are used to obtain benefits for the venturers. Each venturer may take a share of the output
from the assets and each bears an agreed share of expenses incurred. Each venturer has
control over its share of fuiure economic benefils through its share of jointly controlled
assets.

The interests of the Company and of the Group in unincorporated joint ventures are brought
to account by recognising in the financial statements the Group's share of jointly controlled
assets, share of expenses and liabilities incurred, and the income from the sale or use of its
share of the production of the joint venture in accordance with the revenue policy in note
1{x).

Jointly controlled entities

The Group has interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities, whereby the
venturers have contractual arrangements that establish joint control over the economic
activities of the entities. The Group recognises its interest in jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation, by combining its share of the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of the joint venture with similar line items in the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the balance sheet date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the
income statement.

Foreign exchange differences that arise on the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in a foreign operation are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

n

Foreign currency (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are firanslated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are translated 1o Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operalions are translated to
Australian dollars at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly
in the foreign currency translation reserve,

Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences arising from the transiation of the net investment in foreign operations
and of related hedges are taken to the foreign cumrency translation reserve. They are
released into the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to changes in fareign
exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates arising in the normal course of
business. The principal derivatives that may be used are forward foreign exchange
contracts, foreign currency swaps, interest rate swaps and commodity crude oil price swap
and option contracts. Their use is subject to a comprehensive set of policies, procedures
and limits approved by the Board of Directors. The Group does not trade in derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. Where derivatives
qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature
of the itern being hedged, otherwise the gain ar loss on re-mmeasurement to fair value is
recoghnised immediately in profit or loss.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or
pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest
rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of forward
exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the present
value of the quoted farward price. The fair value of carnmodity swap and option cantracts is
their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

Hedging

Fair value hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment (or an identified portion of such asset,
liability or firrm commitment), any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the
income statement. The hedged item is stated at fair value in respect of the risk being
hedged, with any gain or loss being recognised in the income statement,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

H

(9)

Hedging (continued)

Cash flow hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash
flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective
part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity.
When the farecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or non-financial liability, or the forecast transaction for a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability becomes a firm commitment for which fair value hedging is applied, the
associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or
other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or nen-financial liability. If a hedge of a
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are
reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired
or liahility assumed affects profit or loss {(i.e. when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding paragraph, the asscciated
cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement in
the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or
loss. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income
slaternent.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes
designation of the hedge relationship, but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in
accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is
no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity
is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities

When a derivative financial instrument is used to hedge economically the foreign exchange
exposure of a recognised monetary asset or liability, hedge accounting is not applied and
any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement.

Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation

The portion of the gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation that is detlermined 1o be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity. Any
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. On disposal of the
foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognised directly in
equity is transferred to profit or loss.

Acquisition of assets

All assets acquired are recorded at their cost of acquisition, being the amount of cash or
cash equivalents paid, and the fair value of assets given, shares issued or liabilities incurred.
The cost of an asset comprises the purchase price including any incidental costs directly
attributable to the acquisition; any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating; and the estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located
determined in accordance with note 1{q).

Business combinations
All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

The purchase method of accounting involves allocating the cost of the business combination to
the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabiliies assumed at the
date of acquisition. '
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure in respect of each area of interest is accounted for
using the successful efforts method of accounting. The successful efforts methed requires
all exploration and evaluation expenditure to be expensed in the period it is incurred, except
the costs of successful wells and the costs of acquiring interests in new exploration assets,
which are capilalised as intangible exploration and evaluation. The costs of wells are initially
capitalised pending the resulis of the well.

An area of interest refers to an individual geological area where the presence of oil or a
natural gas field is considered favourable or has been proved 1o exist, and in most cases will
comprise an individual prospective oil or gas field.

Exploration and evaluation expendiiure is recognised in relation 1o an area of interest when
the rights to tenure of the area of interest are current and either:

(i) such expenditure is expected to be recavered through successful development and
commercial exploitation of the area of interest, or alternatively, by its sale; or

(i) the exploration activities in the area of interest have notl yet reached a stage which
permits reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves
and active and significant operations in, or in relation to, the area of interest are
continuing.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s exploration and evaluation assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date, in conjunction with the impairment review process referred to in note
1{p). to determine whether any of the following indicators of impairment exist:

{) tenure over the licence area has expired during the period or will expire in the near
future, and is not expecied 1o be renewed;

(i) substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
in the specific area is not budgeted or planned;

(iii} exploration for and evaluation of resources in the specific area has not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of resources, and the Group has decided
to discontinue aclivities in the specific area; or

{iv) sufficient data exists to indicate that although a development is likely to proceed the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely 1o be recovered in
full from successful development or from sale.,

Where an indicator of impaimment exists a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is
made, and any resultant impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

When a discovered oil or gas field enters the development phase the accumulated
exploration and evaluation expenditure is transferred to oil and gas assets — asseis in
development. )
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

)

(k)

Qil and gas assets

Oil and gas assets are usually single oil or gas fields being developed for future production
or which are in the production phase. Where several individual il ar gas fields are to be
produced through commmon facilities the individual oil or gas fields and the associated
production facilities are managed and reported as a single oil and gas asset.

Assels in development

When the technical and commercial feasibility of an undeveloped oil or gas field has been
demonstrated the field enters its development phase. The cosis of oil and gas assets in the
development phase are separately accounted for as tangible assets and include past
exploration and evaluation costs, development drilling and other subsurface expenditure,
surface plant and equipment and any associated land and buildings.

When commercial operation commences the accumulated costs are transferred to oil and
gas assets — producing assets,

Producing assets

The costs of oil and gas assets in production are separately accounted for as tangible assets
and include past exploration and evaluation costs, pre-production development costs and
the ongoing costs of continuing to develop reserves for production and to expand or replace
plant and equipment and any associated land and buildings.

These costs are subject to depreciation and depletion in accordance with note 1{k).

Ongoing exploration and evaluation activities

Often the inHial discovery and development of an oil or gas asset will lead to ongoing
exploration for and evaluation of, potential new oil or gas fields in the vicinity with the
intention of producing any near field discoveries using the infrastructure in place.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure associated with oil and gas assets is accounted for
in accerdance with the policy in note 1(h). Exploration and evaluation expenditure amounts
capitalised in respect of oil and gas assets are separately disclosed in note 13.

Land, buildings, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are measured at cost less accumulated deprediation on buildings, less any
impairment losses recognised.,

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of rotable spares and insurance spares that
are purchased for back up or rotation with specific plant and equipment items. Similarly, the
cost of major cyclical maintenance is recognised in the carrying amount of the related plant and
equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation. Any remaining carrying
amount from the cost of the previous major cyclical maintenance is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation on buildings, plant and equipment is calculated in accordance with note 1(k).
Depreciation and depletion

Depreciation charges are calculated to write-off the depreciable value of buildings, plant and
equipment over their estimated economic useful lives to the Group. Each component of an
item of buildings, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the asset is depreciated separately. The residual value, useful life and depreciation
method applied to an asset is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Depreciation and depletion (continued)

Depreciation of onshore buildings, plant and equipment and corporate assels is calculated
using the straight-line method of depreciation on an individual asset basis from the date the
asset is available for use.

The estimated useful lives for each class of onshore assets for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Buildings . 20 - 50years
Plant and equipment

= Computer equipment 3 - byears
» Motor vehicles 4 - 7 years
= Furniture and fittings 10 - 20vyears
= Pipelines 10 - 30 years
= Plant and facilities 10 - 50years

Depreciation of offshore plant and equipment is calculated using the units of production
method on a cash-generating unit basis {refer note 1(p)) from the date of commencement of
production.

Depletion charges are calculated using a unit of production method based on heating value
which will amortise the cost of carried forward exploration, evaluation and subsurface
development expenditure (“Sub-surface assets™) over the life of the estimated Proven plus
Probable (“2P") reserves in a cash-generating unit, together with future subsurface costs
necessary to develop the hydrocarbon reserves in the respective cash-generating units.

The heating value measurement used for the conversion of volumes of different hydrocarbon
products is barrels of oil equivalent.

Depletion is not charged on costs carried forward in respect of assets in the development
stage until production commences, ‘

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financia! instruments held by the Group and the Company which are classified as being
available for sale are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recoghised
directly in equity.

The fair value of financial instruments classified as available for sale is their quoted bid price
on the balance sheet date.

Financial instruments classified as available for sale are recognised/derecognised by the
Group and the Company on the date it commits to purchase/sell the investments., When
these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses, Costis determined as follows:

(i) drilling and mairtenance stocks, which include plant spares, consumables and
maintenance and drilling tools used for ongoing operations, are valued at weighted
average cost; and
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(m)

(n)

{0)

(D)

Inventories (continued)

(i}  petroleum products, which comprise extracted crude oil, liquefied petroleum gas,
condensate and naphtha stored in tanks and pipeline systerns and processed sales
gas and ethane stored in sub-surface reservoirs, are valued using the absorplion cost
rnethod in a manner which approximates specific identification.

Trade and other recelvables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which in practice is the
equivalent of cost, less any impairment losses.

Long-term receivables are discounted and are stated at amortised cost, less impairment
losses.

Trade and other receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Where a receivable is impaired the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset's carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrylng amount of the receivable is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have an original maturity of three months or less.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. Where an indicator of impairment exists a formal estimate of the recoverable
amount is made.

Qil and gas assets, land, buildings, plant and equipment are assessed for impairment on a
cash-generating unit (“CGU") basis. A cash-generating unit is the smallest grouping of
assets that generates independent cash flows, and generally represents an individual oil or
gas field. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis,

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with note 1(h).

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss even though
the financial asset has not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit orloss.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. Significant Accounting Policles {continued)

(p)

)

Impairment {continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. In assessing value in use, an asset's estimated fulure cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent from other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

For oil and gas assets the estimated future cash flows. are based on estimates of
hydrocarbon reserves, future production profiles, commodity prices, operating costs and any
future development costs necessary to produce the reserves. Estimates of future
commodity prices are based on contracled prices where applicable or based on forward
market prices where available,

Reversals of impairment

An impairmment loss is reversed if there has been an increase in the estimated recoverable
amount of a previously impaired asset. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or depletion, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are not reversed.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a resull of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Restoration

Provisions for future environmental restoration are recognhised where there is a present
obligation as a result of exploration, development, production, transportation or storage
activities having been undertaken, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. The estimated future obligations include the costs of
removing facilities, abandoning welis and restoring the affected areas.

The provision for future restoration costs is the best estimate of the present value of the
future expenditure required to settle the restoration obligation at the reporting date, based on
current legal requirements. Future restoration costs are reviewed annually and any changes
in the estimate are reflected in the present value of the restoration provision at the balance
sheet date, with a corresponding change in the cost of the associated asset.

The amount of the provision for future restoration costs relating to exploration, development
and production facilities is capitalised and depleted as a component of the cosl of those
activities.

The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the provision is recognised as a finance cost
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n

Employee benefits

Wages, salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, and annual leave that are
expecled to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long-term service benefits

Long service leave is provided in respect of all employees, based on the present value of the
estimated future cash outflow to be made resulting from employees’ services up to balance
date. The obligation is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary rates
and expected settlement dates, and is discounted using the rates attached to the
Commonwealth Government bonds at the balance sheet date which have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group's obligations.

Defined contribution plans

The Company and several controlled entities contribute to a number of defined contribution
superannuation plans. Obligations for contributions are recognised as an expense in the
income statement as incurred.

Defined benefit plan

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit superannuation plan is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earmed in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on government bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations. The calcutation is
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to
past service by employees is recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent
that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in the income
staterment.

Actuarial gains or losses that arise in calculating the Group's obligation in respect of the plan
are recognised directly in retained earnings.

When the calculation results in plan assets exceeding liabilities to the Group, the recognised
asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs
and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Past service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
employee services in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or
changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service
cosis may either be positive (where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where
existing benefits are reduced).




SANTOS Ltd

21/02/2008 8:53:09 AM DPAGE 28/137 Fax Server

16
SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

n

(s)

®

(u)

(v}

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Santos Executive Share Option Plan allows eligible executives to acquire shares in the
capital of the Company. The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee
expense wilh a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
and recognised over the period during which the executive becomes unconditionally entitied
to the eptions. The fair value of the options granted is measured using the Monie Carlo
simulation method, taking into account the terms and market conditions upon which the
options were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is only adjusted when the
options do not vest due to non-market related conditions.

The fair value of Share Acquisition Rights (*SARs") issued to eligible executives under the
Execulive Long-term Incentive Program is recognised as an employee expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised
over the period during which the executive becomes unconditionally entited to the SARs.
The fair value of the SARs granted is measured using the Monte Carlo simulation method,
taking into account the terms and market conditions upon which the SARs were granted.
The amount recognised as an expense is only adjusted when the SARs do not vest due to
non-market related conditions.

The fair value of shares issued to eligible employees under the Santos Employee Share
Acquisition Plan, to eligible executlives and employees under the Santos Employee Share
Purchase Plan, and new shares issued 1o non-executive directors under the Non-executive
Director Share Plan, is recognised as an increase in issued capital on grant date.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemptionr value being recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Fixed rate notes that are hedged by an interest rate swap are recognised at fair value {refer
note 1(f)).

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, including interest and finance charges relating to major oil and gas assets
under development up to the date of commencement of commercial operations, are
capitalised as a component of the cost of development. Where funds are borrowed
specifically for qualifying projects the actual borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. Where
the projects are funded through general borrowings the borrowing costs are capitalised
based on the weighted average borrowing rate {refer note 20).

Borrowing costs incurred after commencement of commercial operations are expensed.
Deferred income

A liability is recorded for obligations under sales contracts to deliver natural gas in future
periods for which payment has already been received.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised when the related goods or services are received, at
the amount of cash or cash equivalent that will be required to discharge the obligation, gross of
any setttement discount offered. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled on
normal terms and conditions.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(w)

(x}

Share capital

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary share capital is classified as equity.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable and any dividends are
discretionary, or it is redeemable only at the Company's option. Dividends on preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability at the time the directors resolve to pay or declare the
dividend.

Transaction costs
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net

-of any related income tax benefit.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Revenue is recognised and measured at the
fair value of the consideration or contributions received, net of goods and services tax
(“GST"), to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

Sales revenue

Sales revenue is recognised on the basis of the Group’s interest in a producing field
(‘entitlerments’ method), when the physical product and associated risks and rewards of
ownership pass to the purchaser, which is generally at the time of ship or truck loading, or on
the product entering the pipeline.

Revenue earned under a production sharing contract (*PSCT™) is recognised on a net
entittements basis according to the terms of the PSC.

Dividends
Dividend revenue from controlled entities is recognised as the dividends are declared, and
from other parties as the dividends are received.

Overriding royalties
Royalties recognised on farmed-out operating lease rights are recognised as revenue as
they accrue in accordance with the terms of the overriding royalty agreements.

Pipeline tariffs and processing tolls

Tariffs and tolls charged to other entities for use of pipelines and facilities owned by the
Group are recognised as revenue as they accrue in accordance with the terms of the tariff
and tolling agreements.

Trading revenue

Trading revenue represents the net revenue derived from the purchase and subsequent sale
of hydrocarboen products from third parties where the risks and benefits of ownership of the
product do not pass 1o the Group, or where the Group acts as an agent or broker with
compensation on a commission or fee basis.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(y)

(2)

{aa)

Other income

Other income is recognised in the income statement at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of GST, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer or when the service has been performed.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of a non-current asset is included as other income at the
date control of the asset passes to the buyer. The gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net
proceeds on disposal.

Expenses

Government royalties, petroleum resource rent tax and similar taxes

Government royalties, petroleumn resource rent tax (“PRRT") and similar taxes are
recognised as an operating expense on an accruals basis when the related sales are
recognised or related production takes place. The amount is recognised in accordance with
government legislative requirements.

Operating lease payments

Operating lease payments, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the leased items, are recognised in the income statement
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Net financing costs

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective
interest rate method, the unwinding of the effect of discounting on provisions, and interest
receivable on funds invested.

Imerest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective
interest method.

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
(“GST"), except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Tax Office (“ATO"). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable {o, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the
balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.
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Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(ab)

income tax

Income tax an the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profit or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacled or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet approach, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the appropriate tax bases. The following temporary differences are not
provided for: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settiement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Company and all its wholly-owned Australian residert entities are part of a tax-
consolidated group under Australian taxation law. Santos Ltd is the head entity in the tax-
consolidated group. Current tax expensef/income, deferred tax liabiliies and deferred tax
assets arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax-consoclidated group are
allocated among the members of the tax-consolidated group using a ‘stand-alone taxpayer’
approach in accordance with Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting and are
recognised in the separate financial statements of each entity. Current tax liabilities and assets
and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of the members of the
tax-consolidated group are recognised by the Company (as head entity in the tax-consolidated
group).

The Company and the other entities in the tax-consolidated group have entered into a tax
funding agreement. Tax contribution amounts payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as payable to or receivable by the Company and each other member of the tax
consolidated group. Where the tax contribution amount recognised by each member of the
tax-consolidated group for a particular period under the tax funding agreement is different to
the aggregate of the current {ax liability or asset and any deferred tax asset arising from unused
tax losses and tax credits in respect of that period assumed by the Company, the difference is
recognised as a contribution from {or distribution to) equity participants.

The Company and the other entities in the tax-consolidated group have also entered into a tax
sharing agreement pursuant to which the other entities may be required to contribute to the tax
liabilities of the Company in the event of default by the Company or upon leaving the tax-
consolidated group.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{ac)

{ad)

Discontinued operations and non-current assets held for sale

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and that represents a major line of business or geographical area
of operations, and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a tine of business or
area of operations. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the
face of the income statement.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction. They are not depreciated or amortised.
For an asset or disposal group to be classified as held for sale, it must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group) but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset {or disposal group) is recognised
at the date of derecognition.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on
management's judgement regarding estimates and assumptions of future events. The
reasonableness of estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The key judgements, estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the canying
amount of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

Estimates of reserve quantities

The estimated quantities of proven and probable hydrocarbon reserves reported by the
Company are integral to the calculation of depletion and depreciation expense and to
assessments of possible impairment of assets. Estimated reserve quantities are based
upon interpretations of geological and geophysical models and assessments of the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of producing the reserves. These assessments require
assumptions to be made regarding future development and production costs, commodity
prices, exchange rates and fiscal regimes. The estimates of reserves may change from
period to period as the economic assumptions used to estimate the reserves can change
from period to period, and as additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations. Reserves estimates are prepared in accordance with the Company's policies
and procedures for reserves estimation which conform to guidelines prepared by the Society
of Petroleum Engineers.

Exploration and evaluation

The Group's policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure is discussed in note 1(h). The
application of this palicy requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions as
to fulure events and circumstances, particularly in relation to the assessment of whether
economic quantities of reserves have been found. Any such estimates and assumptions may
change as new information becomes available. If, after having capitalised exploration and
evaluation expenditure, management concludes that the capitalised expenditure is unlikely to
be recovered by future exploitation or sale, then the relevant capitalised amount will be written
off fo the income statement.

The carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets is disclosed in note 12,



SANTOS Ltd

21/02/2008 8:53:09 AM PAGE 33/137 Fax Server

21
SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(ad) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Provision for restoration

The Group estimates the fulure removal and restoration costs of oil and gas production
fadilities, wells, pipelines and related assets at the time of installation of the assets. In most
instances the removal of these assels will occur many years in the future. The estimate of
future removal costs therefore requires managemeni to make judgernents regarding the
rermoval date, fulure environmental legistation, the extent of restoration activities required and
future removal technologies.

The carrying amount of the provision for restoration is disclosed in note 21.

Impairment of oil and gas assets

The Group assesses whether oil and gas assets are impaired on a semi-annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belong. The assumptions used in the estimation of recoverable amount and the
canying amount of oil and gas assets are discussed in notes 13 and 15.

Sidoarjo mudfiow incident
The Group has raised a provision for potential remediation and related costs that may arise

from the Sidoarjo mudflow incident. The amounts recognised and the basis of the estimate are
discussed in note 3,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2008 2007 2006
Continuing  Dliscontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million $milllon Smillion Smillion $million $million $million
2. Revenue and Other Income
Product sales:
Gas, ethane and liquefied gas g820.8 23.3 944 1 897.1 471 944 2 e 380.3
Crude oil 1,034.4 24 1,036.8 1,196.9 5.1 1,202.0 4972 650.1
Condensate and naphtha 325.7 44 3301 388.3 9.0 397.3 94.1 81.8
Liquefied petroleum gas 177.5 - 177.5 206.8 - 206.8 714 74.9
2458.4 30.1 24885 2,688.1 61.2 2,750.3 974.3 1,187.1
Other revenue;
Ovemiding royalties 12.9 - 129 15.5 - 15.5 202 24.2
Pipeline tariffs and tolls 44 - 44 3.2 - 3.2 - (0.3)
Trading revenue 6.6 - 6.8 58 - 56 6.1 49
Dividends from controlled entities - - - - - - 874.0 -
Other 5.2 - 52 47 - 4.7 1.0 2.5
29.1 - 28.1 29.0 - 28.0 901.3 31.3
Total revenue 2,487.5 301 2,517.6 2,718.1 61.2 2,778.3 1,8675.6 1,218.4
Other income:
Insurance recovery 24 - 24 218 - 218 - -
Net gain on redetermination of unitised field 488 - 46.8 - - - - -
Net gain on sale of available-for-sale financial
assels 334 - 334 - - - 13.9 -
Net loss on sale of discontinued operations * - 87.7) (67.7) - - - - -
Net {loss)/gain on sale of non-cumrent assets (0.9} {1.9) (2.8) 3.2 38.9 421 1.7 8.1
81.7 {69.6} 12.1 25.0 389 63.9 15.6 6.1

*  Includes impairment loss on measurement to fair value less costs to sell of $97.8 million, net of $27_2 million gain recycled into profit and loss on the reversal of associated amounts

previously deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Continuing  Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinuad Total
$milflon $million $million Smillion $million $million $million $million
Expenses
Cost of sales:
Cash cost of production
Production costs:
Production expenses 3778 30 3809 3252 8.0 333.2 115.3 1124
Production facilities operating leases 67.9 - 67.9 577 - 57.7 277 35.3
4458 3.0 448.8 3828 8.0 380.9 143.0 147.7
Other operating costs:
Pipeline tariffs, tolls and other 68.9 - 68.9 50.8 - 50.8 231 244
Royalty and excise 77.3 28 801 109.0 42 113.2 30.8 40.8
PRRT and similar taxes 111.2 - 111.2 30.0 - 30.0 40.2 -
_257.4 2.8 260.2 189.8 4.2 194.0 94.1 65.2
Tota! cash cost of production 703.2 58 709.0 572.7 12.2 584.9 2371 2128
Depreciation and depletien 756.8 - 756.8 666.9 23.0 689.9 4182 418.1
Third party gas purchases 20.1 - 201 69.1 - 69.1 a7 67.0
Increase in product stock (33.8) - {33.8) (6.5) - {6.5) {15.7) 5.3
Total cost of sales 1,446.3 5.8 1,452.1 1,302.2 35.2 1,337.4 643.3 703.3
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CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Continulng Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million $mitilon $million $million $million $million $million
3 Expenses {continued)
Other expenses:
Selling, general and administrative:
Expenses 753 11.8 871 64.0 7.5 71.5 718 471
Depreciation 2.5 - 2.5 1.2 1.1 2.3 1.1 0.3
77.8 11.8 896 65.2 8.6 738 729 474
Foreign exchange losses/{gains} 05 - 05 (0.8) - {0.8) 0.7 0.5
Change in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss 119 - 119 (18.8) - (18.8) 1.3 (1.3)
Fair value hedges, {gains)fiosses:
On the hedging instrument (57.8) - {57.6} 15.5 - 15.5 - -
On the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk 58.1 - 58.1 (15.7} - (15.7) - -
Exploration and evaluation expensed 226.1 87 2348 268.8 79.0 3478 642 19.8
Net impairment loss on oil and gas assets - - - 11.2 5.1 16.3 56.6 29
Impairment loss on receivables due from
controlled entities - - - - - - 253 6.3
Net impairment {reversai)loss on investments
in controlled entities - - - - - - (380.7} 325.7
3178 20.5 3383 325.4 92.7 418.1 {169.7) 4014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million $millien $million $million $millien $million $million
Expenses {continued)
Profit before tax includes the following:
Depreciation and depletion:
Depletion of sub-surface asset expenditure 4313 - 4313 400.3 230 4233 265.7 286.7
Depreciation of plant and equipment 3236 - 3236 265.1 1.4 266.2 1513 1204
Depreciation of buildings 4.4 - 4.4 27 - 27 23 1.3
Total depreciation and depletion 759.3 - 758.3 668.1 241 692.2 419.3 4184
Employee benefits expense 173.8 6.5 180.3 161.4 14.7 176.1 176.8 173.0
Net write-down of inventories 0.2 - 0.2 04 - 04 03 0.2
Operating lease rentals:
Minimum lease payments 59.1 0.2 59.3 725 07 73.2 411 48.5
Contingent rentals 0.5 - 0.5 0.6 - 0.6 0.1 0.2
Amounts that are unusual because of their
nature, size, or incidence; .
Remediation and related costs of the Moonie
to Brisbane pipeline incident 38.0 - 380 - - - - -
Exploration and evaluation expensed
includes amounts provided for potential
remediation and related costs of the
Sidoarjo mudflow incident 8.0 - 8.0 B8.5 - 88.5 - -
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3. Expenses {continued)
Sidoarjo mudflow incident

The mud flow incident at the Banjar Panji-1 enshore expioration well located within the area of the
Brantas Production Sharing Contract (“PSC") continues, with the inial area affected presently being
approximately 850 hectares. The cause of the incident is yet to be determined.

The Campany, through its subsidiary Santos Brantas Pty Lig ("STOB"), has a non-operaiec 18%
infrest in 1he Brantas PSC, which is operated by 50% padicipant Lapindo Brantas Inc (*Lapindo™).
The other party to ihe PSC is an kndonesian company, PT Prakarsa Brantas (*Prakarsa’), formerly
known as PT Medco E & P Branias.

Trne fiow of mud ard water has resulled in significant property damage, the interruplion of local
infrastructure and the need to relocate a significant number of local villagers. Efforts to contain and
manage the mudflow are continuing and are overseen by ihe Sidoarjo Mud Mitigation Agency (“the
Agency”. which was established by Reguiation of the President of Indonesia Number 14 Year
2007, dated 8 April 2007).

During the year, STOR was ramed as one of a number of defendarts (including Lapindo and
relevan! Government authorities) in a legal proceeding commenced in Indonesia by Wahana
Lingkungan Hidup Indonesia (Friends of the Earth Indoresia - “WALHI"} which sought various
orcers agains! the defendanis. On 27 Decernber 2007, the South Jakaria District Court dismissed
WALHP's application citing natural causes as the likely cause of the incident, Santos understands
that WALHI has filed an appeal against thal decision with 1he relevant Migh Count in Indonesia.
ST0B will continue 1o vigorously defend the procesding.

STOB has not admitied any lability in relation io the incident under the PSC, the Operating
Agreement or at all. Nevertheless, STOB has supported Lapindo and the Agency in their efforts to
manage the incident and assist the community. STOR has, subject to a full reservation of its legat
rights, paid PSC cash calls of approximately US$28.5 million sirce May 2006.

The Board's prudent estimate of the cosis that may arise relating to the incident reflects an
assumnption thal a resoiution will ultimately be reached as between the Government, Lapinds, the
non-operating PSC parties (STOB and Prakarsa) and ail other relevant parties as to the cosis
related o lang-term mud management opiiors, proposed costs of infrastruciure refocation arxd any
{hird party claims. M aiso assumes that the present conditions at the site of the incident will remain
stabie or improve over the longer term. These assumptions are based vpon an updated
assessment of information currently available, experience and events since May 2006 (including
the WALH! decision and faclors impacting a resolution) and progress associated with managing
{hie mid fow,

The Company, while not accepling any #abilily in elation to the incident, its ongoing managemsnt
or any remediation of the area, has previousiy raised a provision of US$72.0 million in relation to
the incident resulting in approximately A$88.5 milion expensed (at foreign exchange rates applying
at the time). As part of its review of provisions for the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the
Compary sonsidered i prudent to increase the provision in light of currert irformation. The total
provision (before costs already paid) has been increased to US5E79.0 million representing an
increase in the provision of US$7.0 million and resuliing in A%8.0 milion being expensed in the
current period,

Witk the smudfiow continuing, the complexity of the incident, and the need o consult with a numkser
of interested parties (boih public and private). the situation remains dynamic. Accordingly, there
continues 1o be unceriainly surrourding the incident and ifs cosl and other implicatons for the
Group. There remains the possibility that resolution of these uncertainties may ulimately he on a
different basis than presertly assumed which could result i the costs bormne by STOR being
significantly different from the current estimate. The Company will continue to review the adequacy
of the Group's provision in light of developments and available information,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

a. Expenses (continued)
Sidoarjo mudflow Incident (continued)

The Company's accounting policy in respect of insurance claims is to recognise insurance
proceeds oniy when the insurers have granted indemnity or there is a high probability that
indemnity will be granted. In accordance with this policy, the Group recognised an amount of
AS%21.8 million as insurance proceeds in 2006. The insurance proceeds include STOB's share of
the US$25.0 million well control insurance received by the Joint Venture. The balarce reiates to
the Compariyy's own well conirol insurance. The Group has therefore recogrised an amoud that
reflects progress ciairn payments received and likely to be received under the Company's owi
policy, while il continues 10 work towards a resalution with ils insurens.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Contlnuing " Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million $million $million 3million $million $milllon 3million
4. Earnings
Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation,
depletion, exploration and impairment
(“EBITDAX" is calculated as follows: .
Profitf{loss) before tax 666.0 (65.0) 601.0 992.0 (27.3} 964.7 1,3120 {12.9)
Add back:

Net financing costs/{income) 139.1 (0.8) 138.3 123.5 {0.5) 123.0 105.6 132.7
Earnings before interest and tax (“"EBIT") 805.1 {65.8) 739.3 1,115.5 {27.8) 1,087.7 14176 119.8
Add back:

Depreciation and depletion 759.3 - 759.3 668.1 24 1 692.2 4193 418.4
Exploration and evaluation expensed 2261 8.7 2348 268.8 79.0 78 542 19.9
Net impaimment loss on oil and gas assets - - - 112 5.1 16.3 56.6 29
Impairment loss on receivables due from
controlled entities - - - - - - 253 6.3
Net impairment (reversal}floss on investments
in controlled entities - - - - - - {380.7) 325.7
EBITDAX 1,790.5 (57.1) 1,733.4 2,063.6 80.4 2,144.0 1,592.3 893.0
5. Net Financing Costs
Interest income:
Controlled entities - - - - - - 186.2 342
Other entities 13.6 0.8 14.4 12.0 0.8 12.6 28 27
Financial income 13.6 0.8 14.4 12.0 0.6 12.6 188.8 36.9
Interest expense;
Controlled entities - - - - - - 2797 156.1
Other entities 129.5 - 1295 120.3 0.1 1204 06 0g
Less borrowing costs capitalised (6.3 - (6.3) {14.5) - (14.5) - -
123.2 - 1232 105.8 0.1 105.9 2803 157.0
Unwind of the effect of discounting on provisions 239 - 239 254 - 254 85 83
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 5.6 - 5.6 4.3 - 4.3 56 4.3
Financial expenses 152.7 - 152.7 135.5 0.1 135.6 294.4 189.6
Net financing costs/{income) 139.1 {D.8) 138.3 123.5 (0.5) 123.0 105.6 132.7
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Smillion

6. Income Tax Expense
Recognised in the income statement

Current tax expense

Current year 236.2 3721 48.5 179.5
Adjustrnents for prior years (23.2) 5.1 10.7 (0.4)
213.0 377.2 59.2 179.1
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (23.2) {40.6) {10.6) {81.5)
Benefit of tax losses recognised {19.2) (15.3) - -
Adjustments for prior years {(10.2) - (10.6) -
(52.6) {55.9) (21.2) (81.5)
Total income tax expense 160.4 321.3 38.0 97.6

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense
and pre-tax net profit(loss)

Profit/(loss) before tax §01.0 9647 1,312.0 (12.9)
Prima facie income tax at 30% (2006: 30%) 180.3 289.4 393.6 (3.9)
Increase in income tax expense due to: )
Non-deductible depreciation and depletion 35 6.1 255 2.2
Abandonment of exploration - - - 1.9
Net impairment (reversal)/loss of investments in
controlled entities - - {114.2) 97.6
Foreign losses not recognised 385 41.3 - -
Benefit arising from previously unrecognised tax
losses that is used to reduce current tax .
expense (10.1) - {6.6) -
Dividends from controlled entities - - {262.2) -
Tax losses recognised (19.2) (15.3) - -
{Over)under provided in prior years (33.4) 5.1 0.1 (0.4)
Other 0.8 (5.3} 1.8 0.2
Income tax expense on pre-tax net profit/{loss) 160.4 321.3 38.0 97.6
Aggregate income tax expense is attributable to: :
Continuing operations 159.8 3211 38.0 97.6
Discontinued operations 0.6 0.2 - -
160.4 321.3 38.0 97.6
Deferred tax charged/{credited) directly to
equity
Hedges of investments in foreign operations 26.8 23.0 - -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets (3.3) 38 1.5 {0.3)
Off-market share buy-back transaction costs (0.6) - (0.6) -
Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan 1.9 {2.7) 1.9 (2.7)

24.8 24.1 2.8 (3.0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

7. Discontinued operations

On 5 December 2008, the Company announced that a decision had been made to sell all of its
exploration and production activities in the United States, part of the international reporting
segment (refer note 34). The disposal of Burro Pipeline Inc was completed on 17 April 2007, and
the sale of the remainder of the United States assets for US$70.0 million (A$85.6 million) was
completed on 31 August 2007.

2007 2006
$million $million

The results of the discontinued operation for the
year until disposal are presented below:

Product sales 301 61.2
Cost of sales (5.8) (35.2)
24.3 26.0

Other income (1.9} 389
Other expenses {20.5) {(92.7)
Operating profit/(loss) before net financing

income 1.9 (27.8)
Net financing income 0.8 0.5
Gross profit/(loss} 27 (27.3)
Net loss on sale of discontinued operations {(67.7) -
Loss before tax from discontinued operations (65.0) {27.3)
Income tax expense (0.6) {0.2}
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (65.6) {27.5)

The net loss on sale of discontinued operations is
derived as follows:

Cash proceeds 84.4 -

Non-cash proceeds 1.2 -

) 856 -

Net assets disposed of and selling costs {82.9) -
Gains recycled from foreign currency translation

reserve 27.2 -
Loss on measurement to fair value less costs to

sell {97.6) -

Net loss on sale before income tax {(67.7) -
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7. Discontinued operations (continued)
31 August 31 December
2007 2006
$million $million
The net assets of the discontinued operation were
as follows:
_ Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.9 41.3
Trade and other receivables 36.6 9.1
Inventories 165.2 17.6
Exploration and evaluation assets i 17.2 21.1
Oil and gas assets 38.2 121.7
112.1 210.8
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 326 14.8
Provisions 1.7 2.0
34.3 16.8
Net assets attributable to discontinued operalions 77.8 184.0

Net cash inflow on disposal:
Cash and cash equivalents consideration 84.4
Less cash and cash equivalents disposed of (4.9)

Reflected in the consoclidated cash flow
statement 79.5

" The net cash flows are as follows:

11.7

Operating activities
Investing activities 44.3
Net cash inflow 56.0
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million  $million  $miltion  $million
8. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at bark and in hand 128.6 136.6 493 49.5
Call deposits 71.9 221 7.5 33
200.5 158.7 56.8 52.8
Cash at bank and in hand attributable to
discontinued operations (refer note 7) - 41.3 - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow
statements 200.5 200.0 56.8 52.8

Bank balances and call deposits earn interest at floating rates based upon market rates.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents represent fair value.

Restricted cash balances

Barracuda Lid, a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Papua New Guinea, has cash and
cash equivalents at 31 December 2007 of US§14.5 miftion (2006: US$4.7 million) which can
only be repatriated to Australia with the permission of the Internal Revenue Commission of
Papua New Guinea in accordance with the financing plan submitted in respect of PDL 3.

Santos (BBF) Pty Ltd, a wholly owned Australian subsidiary, has cash and cash equivalents at
31 Dacember 2007 of US323.7 million (2006: US$12.6 million) that are held to cover obligations
under a reserve-based facility.
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Smillion

Trade and Other Receivables

Curremt receivables

Trade receivables 429.0 370.2 145.2 1721
Tax related balances owing by controlled entities - - 20.0 46.6
Non-trade receivables and prepayments 178.4 117.3 43.3 17.0

607.4 487.5 208.5 235.7

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting
date was as follows:

Less than 1 month 394.0 360.9 143.7 1721
1 to 3 months 20.1 8.6 0.7 -
3 to 6 months 13.3 0.3 - -
6 to 12 months . - 0.4 0.1 -
Greater than 12 months 1.6 - 0.7 -
4290 370.2 145.2 172.1

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and setttement terms are generally within 30 days.

Trade receivables that are neither past due or impaired relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

Impaired receivables
At 31 December 2007 there were no current trade receivables that were impaired (2006: $nil}.

The balance of the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables at 31 December
2007 was $nil {2006; $nil). There has been no movement in the allowance during the year.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million__ $million $million Smillion

Nonh-current receivables

Receivables due from controlled entities:
Non-interest-bearing - - 291 601.7
Interest-bearing - - 1,275.7 662.1

- - 1,304.8 1,263.8

Receivables due from controlled entities are
shown net of impairment losses of $25.3 million
{2006: $6.3 million).

Receivables due from controlled entities are for
loans made in the ordinary course of business
for an indefinite period. Interest-bearing
amounis owing by controlled entities are at
normal market terms and conditions.

Inventories
Petroleurn products 165.4 113.5 86.7 55.4
Drilling and maintenance stocks 76.1 53.9 29.2 19.6

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net
realisable value 241.5 167 .4 115.9 75.0

Drilling and maintenance stocks included above
that are stated at net realisable value 59.7 34.1 28.6 18.3
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million $million
11. Derivative financial instruments
interest rate swap contracts 77.2 17.3 - -
Fair value of embedded derivatives 6.9 18.8 - 1.3
84.1 36.1 - 1.3
12. Exploration and Evaluation Assets
CONSOLIDATED . SANTOSLTD
Sub- i Sub-
surface Plantand t surface Plantand
assets equipment Total ! assets equipment Total
$million $miliion $million | $million  $million $million
Balance at 31 December 2006 __369.7 0.6 3603 | 20.6 0.1 207
Balance at 31 December 2007 332.3 0.1 3324 | 15.4 0.1 15.5
Reconciliation of movements i
Balance at 1 January 2006 3334 57 3391 17.1 0.6 17.7
Acquisition of confrolled ertities 10.3 - 10.3 - - -
Acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets 46.2 - 46.2 - - -
Additions 2304 - 2304 17.8 - 17.8
Exploration and evaluation
expensed (97.2) - (97.2) {14.3) - (14.3})
Disposals (8.7) {5.1) {13.8) - {0.5) (0.5)
Transfer to oil and gas assets (114.9) - (114.9) - - -
Assets included in discontinued
operations (refer note 7) (21.1) - {(21.1) - ~ -
Foreign currency translation (18.7}) - {18.7) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2006 359.7 0.6 360.3 20.6 0.1 20.7
Balance at 1 January 2007 359.7 0.6 3603 20.6 0.1 20.7
Acquisition of controlled entities 56.3 - 56.3 - - -
Acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets 11.5 - 1.5 | - - -
Additions 311.9 - 3119 | 952 - 95.2
Exploration and evaluation
expensed (226.1) - {226.1) (54.2) - {54.2)
Disposals ) {1.0) (0.5) {1.5) - - -
Transfer to oil and gas assets (163.3) - (163.3) (46.2) - (46.2)
Foreign currency translation (16.7) - (16.7) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2007 332.3 0.1 332.4 15.4 0.1 15.5
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13. Oiland Gas Assets
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Sub- Sub-
surface Plant and surface Plant and
assets equipment Total i assels equipment Total
2007 $million $million  $million : $million $million $million
Cost at 31 December 2007 7.143.2 52121 12,355.3 i 2,475.2 2,259.7 4734.9
Less accumulated depreciation,
depletion and impairment (4.016.2) (2,754.7) (6,770.9); (1,725.4) (1,359.4) (3,084.8)
Balance at 31 December 2007 _ 3,127.0 2,457 4 5,584.4 749.8 900.3 1,650.1
Reconciliation of movements
Assets in development i
Balance at 1 January 2007 204.6 29 2075 i - - -
Additions 521 14.6 66.7 | - - -
Transfer from exploration and
evaluation assets © 109.6 - 109.6 | - - -
Transfer to producing assets (133.0) {(14.1) (147.1)} - - -
Foreign currency translation {12.9) {3.0) {15.9}: - - -
Balance at 31 December 2007 220.4 - 0.4 220.8 | - - -
Producing assets
Balance at 1 January 2007 26519 2,373.3 5,025.2 : 856.3 863.2 11,7185
Acquisition of controlled entities 50.5 - 50.5 | - - -
Acquisition of oil and gas ;
assets 20.9 - 209 - - -
Additions 447.8 413.2 861.0 ! 160.4 176.4 336.8
Transfer from assets in
development 133.0 14.1 1471 ! - - -
Transfer from exploration and
evaluation assets 53.7 - 53.7 : 46.2 - 46.2
Depreciation and depietion '
expense (431.3) {303.2) (734.5); (265.7) (130.1) {395.8)
Net impairment losses - - - (47.4) (9.2) {56.6)
Foreign currency translation {19.9) (40.4) {60.3): - - -
Balance at 31 December 2007 59066 _ 2457.0 53636 | 7498 9003 1,650.1
Total ail and gas assets 3,127.0 2457.4 5,584.4 749.8 800.3 1,650.1
Comprising: '
Exploration and evaluation
expenditure pending
commercialisation 197.3 0.4 197.7 | - - -
Other capitalised expenditure 2,929.7 2.457.0 5,386.7 749.8 900.3 1,650.1
3,127.0 2457.4 5,584.4 749.8 900.3  1,650.1
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Sub- Sub-
surface Plant and surface Plant and
assets  equipment Total i assels equipment Total
2006 $million $million $million | $million $million $million
Cost at 31 December 2006 6,430.9 4,863.6 11,2045 | 2,3156.9 2,093.0 4.408.9
Less accumulated depreciation,
depletion and irmpairment (3,574.4) (2,487.4) (6,061.8); (1,459.6) (1,2298) (2,689.4)
Balance at 31 December 2006 2.856.5 2,376.2 5,232.7 | 856.3 863.2 1,719.5
Reconciliation ot movements !
Assets in development
Balance at 1 January 2006 126.5 346.6 473.1 ¢ . 28.3 85.8 124.1
Additions 50.8 10.1 60.9 | - - -
Transfer from exploration and
evaluation assets 100.4 - 109.4 | - - -
Transfer to producing assets (67.0) {353.8) (420.8)! (28.3) (95.8) {124.1)
Exploration and evaluation
expensed (8.7) - (8.7)! - - -
Foreign currency translation (5.4) - (5.4) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2006 204.6 2.9 207.5 - - -
Producing assets
Balance at 1 January 2006 2,462.3 1,857.1 4,319.4 | 802.7 701.2 1,603.9
Acquisitions of controlled
entities 84.5 - 845 | 11.4 3.6 15.0
Additions 876.2 450.3 1,326.5 | 2187 184.4 403.1
Transfer from assets in
development 67.0 353.8 4208 | 283 95.8 124.1
Transfer from exploration and
evaluation assets 55 - 55 - - -
Disposals {(18.4) - (18.4): (0.3) (13.7) (14.0)
Depreciation and depletion
expense {423.3) {253.5) (676.8). (296.7) (107.4) {404.1)
Exploration expensed (240.5) - {240.5): (5.6) - (5.6)
Net impairment (losses)/
reversals (18.2) 1.9 (16.3) (2.2) {(0.7) (2.9)
Assets included in discontinued
operations {refer note 7) {116.0) (5.7) (121.7): - - -
Foreign currency translation {27.2) {30.6) {57.8): - - -
Balance at 31 December 2006  2,651.9 2,373.3 5,025.2 856.3 863.2 1,718.5
Total oil ahd gas assets 2.856.5 2,376.2 52327 856.3 863.2 1,719.5
Comprising: '
Exploration and evaluation
expenditure pending
commercialisation 57.9 - 57.9 i - - -
Other capitalised expenditure 2,798.6 2.376.2 5,174.8 856.3 863.2 1.719.5
2,856.5 2,376.2 5,232.7 | 856.3 863.2 1,7195
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Other Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment

CONSOLIDATED

Land and Plantand

SANTOS LTD

i Land and Plant and

1

buildings equipment Total buildings equipment Total

$million $million $million | $million_ $miflion $million
Cost at 31 December 2006 21.8 198.9 220.7 i 4.8 188.3 193.1
Less accumulated depreciation {1.8) (101.7) (103.5) {0.5) (98.4) (98.9)
Balance at 31 December 2006 20.0 97.2 117.2 4.3 89.9 94.2
Cost at 31 December 2007 27.1 236.1 263.2 4.8 224.9 229.7
Less accumulated depreciation (2.5) {125.8) (128.4) | (0.6) (121.7) {(122.3)
Balance at 31 December 2007 24.6 110.2 134.8 ! 4.2 103.2 107.4
Reconciliation of movements
Balance at 1 January 2006 12.2 61.3 73.5 5.5 46.3 51.8
Acquisition of cantrolied entities - - - - - -
Additions 1.9 47.3 59.2 1.1 55.7 56.8
Disposals - {0.1) (0.1) - {0.1) (0.1}
Depreciation (4.1) (11.3) {15.4) (2.3) {(12.0) {14.3)
Balance at 31 December 2006 20.0 97.2 117.2 | 4.3 89.9 04,2 -
Balance at 1 January 2007 20.0 97.2 117.2 4.3 88.9 84.2
Additions 5.1 37.3 42.4 - 36.7 36.7
Depreciation (0.5} {24.3) ~ (24.8) {0.1) (23.4) {23.5)
Balance at 31 December 2007 24.6 110.2 134.8 4.2 103.2 107.4
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Impairment of Cash-generating Units

At 31 December 2007 the Group reassessed the carrying amount of its oil and gas assets for
indicators of impairmment such as changes in future prices, future costs and reserves. As a result,
the recoverable amounts of some cash-generating units were formally reassessed but no
impairment write-downs were required.

Estimates of recoverable amounts are based on the asseis value in use, determined by
discounting each asset’s estimated future cash flows at asset specific discount rates. The pre-tax
discount rates applied were equivalent to post-lax discount rates between 5.6% and 9.7%
(2006: 6.3% and 9.1%) depending on the nature of the risks specific ta each asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash flows that are targely independent from other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Impairment reversals

Consolidated Santos Ltd
Sub- Sub-

surface Plant and surface Plantand
cGuU assets equipment Total assets equipment Total

$million $million $million $million $million $mitlion
2007
Mutineer Exeter - - - 39.3 8.6 47.9
Other — impairment losses - - - 8.1 0.6 8.7
Australia - - - 47.4 9.2 56.6
Impairment losses - 56.6

Net impairment loss/(reversal) 56.6

2006
Elang Kakatua 6.2 0.3 6.5 - - -
Other — impairment losses 6.6 0.8 7.4 2.2 0.7 2.9
Other - impairment reversals (3.3) {2.8) (6.1) - - -
Australia 9.5 (1.7) 7.8 2.2 0.7 2.9
International - other 3.4 - 3.4 - - -
Continuing operations 12.9 {(1.7) 11.2 2.2 0.7 2.9
Discontinued operations 5.1 - 5.1 - - -
18.0 (1.7} 16.3 2.2 0.7 2.9
Impairment losses 22.4 29
Impairment reversals {6.1) -
Net impairment loss/{reversal) 16.3 2.9
cGU Description
Mutineer Exeter Qil field
Elang Kakatua Qi field

The Group has continued to carry forward capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure of
$55.5 million in respect of the Jeruk oil discovery in the Sampang PSC in East Java, Indonesia.
Opportunities to commercialise Jeruk continue to be pursued; however, plans for additional
appraisal drilling have been placed on hold pending the review of development scenarios and the
resolution of commercial and technical issues that may impact the viability of any development,

At 31 December 2007 the recoverable armount of Jeruk was formally estimated by applying
probabilistic assessments to potentia! future cash flows. This analysis indicated that the
recoverable amourt of Jeruk supports the carrying amount at 31 December 2007.
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Available-For-Sale Financial Assets
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2008 2007 2006
$million $million $million $miilion

Equity securities available for sale 15.6 45.2 15.6 20.3

Investments in equity securities available for sale consist of investments in ordinary shares listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange, and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

Other Financial Assets
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Bmillion $million $million

Investments in contrglled entities - - 3,472.3 2,833.8
Other 32.7 11.9 16.1 7.9

32.7 11.9 3,488.4 2,841.7

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2008

Consolidated $million Smilion $million  $million  $million $million
Exploration, evaluation, oil and gas

assets, other land, buildings,

plant and equipment - - 306.4 358.8 306.4 358.8
Other investments - - 3.3 1.6 3.3 1.6
Trade receivables - (7.9) 57 - 57 {7.9)
Other receivables - - 0.1 - 0.1 -
Inventories - - 20.1 15.0 20.1 15.0
Prepayments - - 2.2 20 2.2 2.0
Other assets - - - 9.7 - 9.7
Equity-raising costs (0.6) (1.3) - - {0.6) (1.3)
Trade payables (6.6) (7.8) - - {6.6) (7.8)
interest-bearing loans and

borrowings - - 871 91.1 87.1 91.1
Employee benefits (19.3) (18.3) - - (19.3) (18.3)
Defined benefit obligation (3.4) (5.5) - - (3.4) (5.5)
Provisions {(11.1) 9.1) - - {11.1) (9.1)
Other items - - 73.4 34.3 73.4 343
Tax value of carry-forward losses .

recognhised {18.5) {20.2) - - {18.5) (20.2)
Tax (assets)/liabilities (59.5) {(70.1) 4983 512.5 438.8 442.4
Set-off of tax (27.3) (5.0) 27.3 5.0 - -

Net tax (assets)/liabilities (86.8)  (75.1) 5256 517.5 438.8 4424
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Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Assets Liabilities Net
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Santos Ltd . Smillion $million $million  S$million  $million  $million
Exploration, evaluation, oil and gas. .

assets, other land, buildings,

plant and equiprment - - 83.9 1114.7 83.9 111.7
Other investments - - 3.3 1.6 3.3 1.6
Trade receivables - (8.5) 5.0 - 5.0 (8.5)
Inventories - - 12.6 9.7 12.6 9.7
Other assets - - - 0.9 - 0.9
Equity-raising costs {0.6) (1.3) - - {0.6) (1.3)
Employee benefits (18.3) (17.5) - - (18.3) {17.5)
Defined benefit obligation (3.4) {5.5) - - {3.4) (5.5)
Provisions (8.2) (6.2) - - {8.2) {6.2)
Other liabilities - {2.8) - - - {2.8)
Other items (11.2) - - 0.2 {(11.2} 0.2
Tax value of carry-forward losses (9.0) (17.0) - - {9.0) {17.0)
Tax {assets)/liabilities (50.7) (58.8) 104.8 124.1 54 .1 65.3
Set-off of tax 50.7 58.8 (50.7) {58.8) - -
Net tax liabilities - - 54.1 65.3 54.1 65.3

At 31 December 2007, temporary differences of $2,498.9 million (2006: $3,006.5 million) relating to
investments in subsidiaries has nol been recognised because the Company controls whether the
liability will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will not be incurred in the foreseeable future.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million $million
Deductible temporary differences 75.8 40.3 - -
Tax losses : 72.8 124.5 27.8 38.8
148.6 164.8 27.8 38.8

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits from.
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences and tax losses of $44.9 milion (2006: $83.9
million) will expire between 2008 and 2025. The remaining deductible temporary differences and
tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Smillion
19. Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables 432.4 341.4 180.6 136.2
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 2290 100.4 731 55.0
Amounts owing to controlled entities - - 389.2 371.7
661.4 441.8 642 9 562.9
20. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings
This note provides information about the
contractual terms of the Group's interest-
bearing loans and borrowings. For more
information about the Group’s exposure 1o
interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note
38.
Current liabilities
Bank loans - secured 1.4 9.0 - -
Bank loans - unsecured 17.3 20.3 - -
Commercial paper 64.6 129.6 - -
Medium-term notes 19.8 - - -
Long-term notes - 130.4 - -
103.1 289.3 - -
Non-current liabilities
Amounts owing 1o controlled entities - - 2,478.2 2,583.6
Bank loans - secured 46.4 52.5 - -
Bank loans - unsecured 304.5 212.4 - -
Medium-term notes 438.8 463.7 - -
Long-term notes 1,203.2 631.8 - -
1,992.9 1,360.4 2,478.2 2,683.6

The amounis owing to controlled entities are for loans made in the ordinary course of business on
normal market terms and conditions and are not repayable for a minimum of 9 years.

The Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts to manage the exposure to interest rates.
This has resulted in a weighted average interest rate on interest-bearing liabilities of 6.62% as at
31 December 2007 (2008: 6.33%). All borrowings are unsecured, with the exception of the
secured bank loan, and arranged through a controlled entity, Santos Finance Ltd, and guaranteed

by Santos Ltd.
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Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings (continued)
Details of major credit facitities

(a} Bank loans - secured
A reserve-based lending facility for US$65.0 million was entered into in the 2006 reporting
period which bears a floating rate of interest. The facility is secured by a first charge over the
Group's interests in the Maleo and Kakap assets in Indonesia with a carrying amount at
34 December 2007 of A$131.6 million. The average rate for the year was 9.15%, and
A%$47.8 million was outstanding at the balance sheet date. The facility is available until 201 2,
and the current amount drawn down is expected to be fully repaid by 2010.

{b) Bank loans - unsecured
The Group has access to the following committed revolving bank facilities:

Revolving facilities

2007 2006
Year of maturity Currency A$million ASmillion
2007 Multi-currency - 200.0
2008 Mutti-currency - 300.0
2009 Multi-currency - 200.0
2011 Multi-currency 225.0 -
2012 Multi-currency 375.0 -
2013 Multi-currency 100.0 -
700.0 700.0

Revolving bank faciliies bear interest at the relevant interbank reference rate plus 0.25% to
0.43%. The amount drawn at 31 December 2007 is $130.0 million (2006: $nil).

Term bank loans

2007 2006

Year of maturity Currency A3million A$million
2007 usoD - 20.3
2008 usD 17.3 19.1
2008 usn 21.4 23.7
2010 ushD 22,2 24.4
2011 usD 22.9 25.3
2012 usD 19.7 21.9
2013 usD 16.4 18.2
2014 usD 17.3 19.2
2015 usD 17.7 19.6
2016 usD 18.0 20.0
2017 usD 18.9 21.0
191.8 232.7

Term bank loans bear interest al the relevant interbank reference rate plus a rmargin of up to
0.75%. The amount outstanding at 31 December 2007 is US$168.1 million (A%191.8 million)
(2006: US$183.9 million (A$232.7 million}) at a weighted average annual effective interest rate
of 5.99% (2006: 6.22%).
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(¢) Commercial paper

54/137
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The Group has an $800.0 million (2006: $800.0 million) Australian commercial paper program
supported by the revolving bank facilities referred to in (b) above. At 31 Decembher 2007,
$64.6 million {2006: $129.6 million) of commercial paper is on issue and the weighted average
annual effective interest rate is 7.59% (2006: 6.61%).

{d} Medium-term notes

The Group has a $1,000.0 million (2006: $1,000.0 million) Australian medium-term note

program.

Medium-term notes on issue at 31 Decemnber 2007

Etfective
Interest 2007 2006
Year of issue Year of maturity rate $million $million
1998 2008 8.04% 19.8 19.7
2005 2011 7.85% * 349.0 349.2
2005 2015 7.84% 89.8 94.8
458.6 463.7
* Floating rate of interest.
{e) Long-term notes
Long-term notes on issue at 31 December 2007
Effective
Yearof Year of interest 2007 2008 2007 2006
issue maturity rate US$million USSmillion A$million  A$million
2000 2007 to 2015 7.08% 203.1 303.4 231.8 384.0
2002 2009 to 2022 6.15% 307.3 298.9 350.7 378.2
2007 2017 to 2027 5.57% 544.0 - 620.7 -
1,054.4 602.3 1,203.2 762.2
Provisions
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2008 2007 2006
$million  $million  $million__ Smillion
Current
Liability for annual leave 23.7 21.6 229 20.8
Liability for long service leave 35.7 31.8 35.2 313
Restoration 51.5 77.0 55 6.6
Non-executive Directors’ retirement benefits 1.5 1.7 1.6 1.7
112.4 132.1 65.1 60.4
Non-current
Liability for long service leave 3.5 27 3.2 2.5
Liability for defined benefit obligations
(refer note 28} 16.3 28.3 16.3 26.3
Restoration 523.8 512.8 148.3 156.0
543.6 541.8 167.8 184.8
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Provisions (continued)

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than provisions relating to

employee benefits are set out below:;

Total Non-
executive
Directors’
Total retirement
restoration benefits Total
$million $million $million
Consolidated
Balance at 1 January 2007 589.8 1.7 591.5
Provisions made during the year 29.6 01 29.7
Provisions used during the year {42.7) {0.3) (43.0)
Unwind of discount 23.9 - 23.9
Change in discount rate {32.5) - (32.5)
Foreign currency fluctuations 7.2 - 7.2
Balance at 31 December 2007 575.3 1.5 576.8
Santos Ltd
Balance at 1 January 2007 162.6 1.7 164.3
Provisions made during the year (5.0} 0.1 (4.9)
Provisions used during the year (2.7) (0.3) (3.0)
Unwind of discount 8.5 - 8.5
Change in discount rate {9.6) - (9.6)
Balance at 31 December 2007 153.8 1.5 155.3

Restoration

Provisions for future removal and restoration costs are recognised where there is a present
obligation as a result of exploration, development, production, transportation or storage activities
having been undertaken, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to setile the obligation., The estimated future obligations include the costs of removing facilities,
abandoning wells and restoring the affected areas.

Non-executive Directors’ retirement benefits

Agreements exist with the Non-executive Directors appointed prior to 1 January 2004 providing
for the payment of a sum on retirement from office as a Director in accordance with shareholder
approval at the 1989 Annual Genera! Meeting. Such benefits ceased to accrue with effect from
30 June 2004. These benefits have been fully provided for by the Company.

In June 2007, t.he Board resclved to adopt a policy of indexation of these ‘frozen’ benefits to
prevent further erosion of the “real” value. The entitlements are annually indexed 1o the 5 year
Government bond rate.

During the year, a retirement payment was made to Mr M A O’Leary who retired as a Director in
Decernber 2006.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Smillion Smillion Smillion Smillion
Other Liabilities
Current
Interest rate swap contracts 9.9 6.7 - -
Other 2.1 2.2 - -
12.0 8.9 - -

Non-current
Crther 7.4 7.6 - -
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Capital and Reserves

Reconciliation ot movement in capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of Santos
Ltd

Share  Translation Falr Value Retained Total
capital reserve reserve earnings equity
Consolidated Smillion $million $miillion Smillion $millicn
Balance at 1 January 2006 2,212.0 {184.3) 8.0 930.2 2,963.9
Movement per recognised income and
expense statement - {29.6) 7.6 ©39.7 8177
Share options exercised by employees 39 - - - 3.9
Shares issued 38.5 - - - 38.5
Dividends to shareholders - - - (268.5) (268.5)
Balance at 31 December 2008 2,254.4 {213.9) 13.8 1,301.4 3,355.5
Balance at 4 January 2007 22544 (213.9) 13.6 1,301.4 3,355.5
Movement per recognised income and
expense statement - {c6.4) {8.2) 450.2 377.6
Share options exercised by employees 3.0 - - - 3.0
Shares issued 144 .4 - - - 144 .4
Share buy-back {(70.2) - - (231.2) (301.4)
Dividends to shareholders - - - {268.6) (268.6)
Balance at 31 December 2007 2,331.6 (280.3) 7.4 1,251.8 3,310.5
Add: Minority interest - - - - -
Total equity 2,331.6 (280.3) 7.4 1,251.8 3,310.5
Fair
Share Translation Value Retained Total
capital reserve reserve earnings equity
Santos Ltd Smillion Smillion $million $million $million
Batance at 1 January 2006 22120 - 4.4 784.4 3.000.8
Movement per recognised income and
expense statement - - (2.0) (114.2}) {(116.2)
Share options exercised by employees 3.9 - - - 3.9
Shares issued s - - - 38.5
Dividends to shareholders - - - (268.5) (268.5)
Balance at 31 December 2006 2,254 .4 - 2.4 401.7 2,658.5
Balance at 1 January 2007 2,254.4 - 2.4 401.7 2,658.5
Movement per recognised income and
expense statement - - 5.0 1,283.6 1,288.6
Share options exercised by employees 3.0 - - - 3.0
Shares issued 144.4 - - - 144 .4
Share buy-back (70.2) - - (231.2) (301.4)
Dividends to shareholders - - - (268.8) (268.6)

Balance at 31 December 2007 23316 - 7.4 1,185.5 3,624.5
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Capital and Reserves (continued)

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Share capital 2007 2006 2007 2006
$million $miltion $million Smillion

585,964,352 (2006: 598,524,106) ordinary

shares, fully paid 1,747.2 1,670.0 1,747.2 1,670.0
88,000 (2006: 88,000) ordinary shares, paid to one

cent - - - -
6,000,000 (2006: 6,000,000) redeemable

convertible preference shares 584.4 '584.4 584.4 584.4

2,331.86 2,254.4 233186 2,254.4

In accordance with changes to the Corporations Law effective 1 July 1998, the shares issued do
not have a par value and there is no limit on the authorised share capital of the Company,

2007 2006 ] 2007 2006

Movement in fully paid ordinary
shares Note Nurmber of shares $million  $million
Balance at the beginning of the year 598,524,106 594,301,771 1,670.0 1,627.6
Santos Employee Share Acquisition

Plan 29(a) 100,650 114,356 1.3 1.2
Santos Employee Share Purchase

Plan 30(a) 400 62,900 - 0.6
Shares issued on exercise of options  30(b) 455,398 586,702 3.0 39
Shares issued on vesting of Share

Acquisition Rights 30(b) - 127,850 - -
Santos Executive Share Plan 30(c) - - - -
Non-executive Director Share Plan 30(d) 14,847 - 0.2 -
Dividend Reinvestment Plan a 11,540,226 3,330,527 1429 36.7
Off-market buy-back b (24,671,275) - (70.2) -
Batance at the end of the year 585,964,352 598,524,106 1,747.2 1,670.0

Movement in redeemable

convertible preference shares

Balance at the beginning of the year c 6,000,000 6,000,000 584.4 584.4
Shares issued - - - -
Share issue cost - - - -

Balance at the end of the year 6,000,000 6,000,000 584.4 584.4

The market price of the Company's ordinary shares on 31 December 2007 was $14.12
(2006: $9.87). Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on
winding up of the Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held,
This is subject to the prior entitlements of the redeemable convertible preference shares.

(a) Dividend Reinvestment Plan
The Santos Dividend Reinvestment Plan is in operation. Shares are allocated al the daily
weighted average market price of the Company's shares on the ASX over a period of seven
business days commencing on the business day after the Dividend Record Date. At this
time, the Board has determined that no discount will apply.
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Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) Off-market buy-back
On 30 June 2007, the Company bought back 24,671,275 fully paid ordinary shares,
representing 4.10% of fully paid ordinary shares on issue at that date, at a price of $12.16
per share. $70.2 million was debited against the Company’s capital account (including
$1.4 million transaction costs, net of tax) and $231.2 million was debited against retained
earnings.

(c) Redeemable convertible preference shares
On 30 September 2004, the Company issued 6,000,000 redeemable convertible preference
shares at $100 each, which resulted in an amount of $600,000,000 being credited to the
Company's capital account before deducting the costs of issue.

Redeemable convertible preference shareholders receive a floating preferential,
non-cumulative dividend which incorporates the value of franking credits (i.e. it is on a
grossed up basis), set at the Bank Bill Swap Rate for 180-day bills plus a margin. Dividends
on redeemable convertible preference shares are in priority to any dividend declared on
ordinary class shares. Redeemable convertible preference shareholders are not entitled to
vote at any general meetings, except in the following circumstances:
(i) onaproposal:

{1} toreduce the share capital of the Company;

{2) that affects rights attached to the redeemable convertible preference shares:

(3) towind up the Company; or

(4) for the dispesal of the whole of the property, business and undertaking of the
Company;

{ii) on a resolution to approve the terms of a buy-back agreement;

(i) during a period in which a dividend or part of a dividend on the redeemable
convertible preference shares is in arrears; or

{iv) during the winding up of the Company.

In the event of the winding up of the Company, redeemable convertible preference shares
will rank for repayment of capital behind all creditors of the Company, but ahead of the
ordinary class shares.

The redeemable convertible preference shares may, at the sale discretion of the Company,
be converted into ordinary class shares and/or exchanged,

Capital risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is 1o safeguard the ability to continue as a geing
concern, so that it can continue io provide retums for sharehoiders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to maintaining an efficient capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assels to reduce
debt.

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
inmerest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as total equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. Eguity includes redeemable
convertible preference shares.
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During 2007 the Group's target was to maintain a gearing ratio below 45% and a BBB+ Standard &

Poor’s credit rating. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 were as
follows:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Smillion
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings
(note 20) 2,096.0 1,649.7 2,478.2 2,583.6
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 8) (200.5) {200.0) (56.8) (52.8)
Net debt 1,885.5 1,449.7 24214 2,530.8
Total equity 3.310.5 3,355.5 3,524.5 2,658.5
Total capital 5,206.0 4.805.2 5,945.9 5,189.3
Gearing ratio 36.4% 30.2% 40.7% 48.8%

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from the $300.0 million share buy-back
undertaken during the year. .

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations where their functional currency is
different to the presentation currency of the reporting entity, as well as from the translation of
liabilities that hedge the Company's net investment in a foreign subsidiary and exchange
differences that arise on the translation of monetary items that form part of the net investmentin a
foreign operation.

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
investments until the investment is derecognised.

Dividends
Dividends recognised during the year by the Company are:

Dollars Total Franked/ Payment
per share $million unfranked date

2007

Interim 2007 redeemable preference $2.8592 17.1 Franked 2 Oct 2007
Final 2006 redeemable preference $2.7272 16.4 Franked 2 Apr 2007
Interirn 2007 ordinary $0.20 115.4 Franked 2 Oct 2007
Final 2006 ordinary $0.20 119.7 Franked 2 Apr 2007

268.6

2006

Interim 2006 redeemable preference $2.5275 156.2 Franked 2 Oct 2006
Final 2005 redeemable preference $2.5300 15.2 Franked 31 Mar 2006
Interim 2006 ordinary $0.20 119.2 Franked 2 Oct 2006
Final 2005 ordinary $0.20 118.9 Franked 31 Mar 2006

268.5
'Franked dividends paid during the year were franked at the tax rate of 30%.
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Capital and Reserves (continued)

After the balance sheet date the following
dividends were proposed by the Directors.
The dividends have not been provided for
and there are no income tax consequences,

Dollars Total Franked/ Payment
per share $million umfranked date
Final 2007 redeemable preference $2.9983 18.0 Franked 31 Mar 2008
Final 2007 ordinary $0.20 117.2 Franked 31 Mar 2008

135.2

The financial effect of these dividends has not been brought to account in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports.

SANTOS LTD
2007 2006
$million $million

Dividend franking account
30% franking credits available to shareholders
of Santos Lid for future distribution, after
adjusting for franking credits which will arise
from the payment of the current tax liability at
31 December 2007 661.6 738.3

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to
declare dividends.

The impact on the dividend franking account of dividends proposed after the balance sheet date
but not recognised as a liability is to reduce it by $57.9 million (2006: $58.3 million).
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Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of Santos Ltd (after deducting dividends paid on redeemable convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of Santos Lid (after adding back the dividends paid on redeemable convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion
of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

CONSOLIDATED

2007 2006
$million $million
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings
per share reconciles to the net profit afier tax in the income
statement as follows:
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Santos Ltd
from continuing operations 506.2 670.9
Net loss attributable to ordinary equily holders of Santos Ltd
from discontinued operations {65.8) {27.5)
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Santos Lid 440.6 643.4
Dividends paid on redeemable convertible preference shares (33.5) (30.4)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 4071 613.0
Dividends paid on redeemabte converible preference shares 33.5 30.4
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 440.6 643.4
2007 2006

Number of shares

The weighted average number of shares used for the purposes
of calculating diluted earnings per share reconciles to the
number used to calculate basic earnings per share as follows:

Basic earnings per share 590,505,305 596,176,555
Partly paid shares 65,864 63,763
Executive share options 818,109 654,780
Share acquisition rights 1,846,671 675,123
Redeemable convertible preference shares 48,354 101 52,942 374
Diluted earnings per share 641,590,050 650,512,595

Partly paid shares outstanding issued under the Santos Executive Share Plan; options outstanding
issued under the Santos Executive Share Option Plan; Share Acquisition Rights (*“SARs") issued to
eligible executives, and redeemable convertible preference shares have been classified as
potential ordinary shares and included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. The number
of shares included in the calculation are those assumed to be issued for no consideration, being
the difference between the number that would have been issued at the exercise price and the
number that would have been issued at the average market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Earnings per Share (continued)

During the year, 455,398 (2006: 586,702) options, nil (2006: 127,850) SARs and nil (2006: nil)
partly paid shares were converied 1o ordinary shares. The diluted earnings per share calculation
includes that portion of these options, SARs and partly paid shares assumed to be issued for nil
consideration, weighted with reference to the date of conversion. The weighted average number
included is 321,982 (2006: 391,882).

335,900 (2006: 280,500) options and 273,100 (2006: 212,350) SARs lapsed during the year. The
diluted earning per share calculation includes that portion of these options and SARs assumed to
be issued for nil consideration, weighted with reference o the date the options or SARs lapsed.
The weighted average number included is 104,179 (2006; 139,619).

To caleculate eamings per share amounts for the discontinued operation, the loss figure used in
the numerator and the weighted average number of ordinary shares for both basic and diluted
amounts are per the above tables.

CONSOLIDATED

2007 2006
cents cents
Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued
operations
Basic earnings per share:
From continuing operations 80.0 107.4
From discontinued operations (11.1) {4.6)
68.9 102.8
Diluted earnings per share:
From continuing operations 78.9 103.1
From discontinued operations (10.2) (4.2)

68.7 98.9
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Consolidated Entities
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Country of

Name

Incorporation

Country of

Name

incorporation

Santos Ltd {Parent Entity)
Controlted entitles':
Alliance Petroleum Australia Pty Ltd ?
Basin Qil Pty Ltd
Boston L.H.F. Pty Ltd
Bridgefield Pty Ltd
Bridge Oil Developments Pty Limited 2
Bronco Energy Pty Limited *
Canso Resources Pty Ltd
Coveyork Pty Ltd
Doce Pty Ltd
Fairview Pipeline Pty Ltd
Farmout Drillers Pty Ltd
Gidgealpa Oil Pty Ltd *
Kipper GS Pty Ltd
Controlled entily of Kipper GS Pty Lid
Santoes Carbon Pty Ltd (previously Crusader
(Victoria) Pty Lid)
Moonie Pipeline Company Pty Ltd
Reef Oil Pty Ltd ?
Santos Asia Pacific Pty Ltd
Controlled entities of Santos Asia Pacific Pty Lid
Santos {Sampang) Pty Ltd
Santos (Warim) Pty Ltd
Santos Australian Hydrocarbons Pty Ltd
Santos (BOL) Pty Ltd ?
Controlled entity of Santos (BOL) Pty Ltd
Bridge Qil Exploration Pty Limited
Santes CSG Pty Ltd
Santos Darwin LNG Pty Lid ?
Santes Direct Pty Ltd
Santes Faciliies Pty Ltd
Santes Finance Ltd
Santes {Globe) Pty Ltd
Santos Intemational Holdings Pty Ltd
Controlled entities of Santes International
Holdings Pty Ltd
Barracuda Limited
Cairn Energy Bangladesh Limited *
CJSC South Pstroleum Company !
Lavana Limited
Petroleum Ventures B.V, *
Sanro Insurance Pte Ltd
Santos Americas and Europe Corporation
Controlled entities of Santos Americas and
Eurcpe Corporation
Santes TPY Corp
Controlled entities ol Santos TPY Corp
Santos Queensland Corp
Santos TOG Corp
Controlled entities of Santos TOG Corp
Santos TOGA Pty Ld
Controlled entity of Santos TOGA Pty Ltd
Santos TPC Pty Ltd *
Santos TPY CSG Corp
Santos {Bawean) Pty Ltd
Santos (BBF) Pty Ltd
Controfled entitiss of Santos (BBF} Pty Ltd
Santos (SPV) Pty Ltd

AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

PNG

KGZ
PNG

5G

USA

USA

Usa
USA

AUST
AUST
UsA
AUST
AUST

AUST

Controlled entities of Santos (SPV) Ply Ltd
Novus Nominees Pty Ltd
Santos Brantas Pty Ltd
Santes (Madura Offshore) Pty Ltd
Santes UK {Kakap 2) Limited

Santos (Donggala) Pty Ltd

Santos Egypt Pty Ltd

Santos Hides Ltd

Santos Intemational Operations Pty Ltd

Santos Intemational Ventures Pty Ltd (previously
Santos India Pty Ltd?)

Santos Niugini Exploration Limited

Santos (Nth Bali 1) Pty Ltd

Santos (Papalang) Pty Ltd

Santos (Popodi) Pty Ltd

Santos Vietnam Pty Ltd

Santos (JBJ1) Pty Ltd ?
Controlled entities of Santes (JBJ1) Pty Lid:

Santos (JBJ2) Pty Ltd ?

Santos (JBJ3) Pty Ltd *

Santos (JPDA 06-104) Pty Ltd

Santos (JPDA 81-12) Pty Ltd

Santes (NARNL Cooper) Pty Ltd

Santes (NGA) Pty Ltd ®

Santos (N.T.} Pty Ltd

Controlled entity of Santos (N.T} Pty Ltd
Bonaparte Gas & Oil Pty Limited

Santos Offshore Pty Ltd *

Santes Qil Expleoration {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

{in liquidation)

Santos Petroleun Pty Ltd ?
Santos QNT Pty Ltd ?
Controlled entities of Sanlos QNT Pty Ltd

Santos QNT (No. 1) Pty Ltd ?

Controlled entities of Santos QNT (No. 1} Pty Ltd
Santos Petroleumn Management Pty Ltd 2
Santes Petreleum Operations Pty Ltd
TMOC Exploration Proprietary Limited

Santos QNT (No. 2) Pty Ltd ?

Controiled entities of Santos QNT (No. 2} Pty Ltd
Associated Petroleum Pty Ltd §

Moonie Qil Pty Lid
Petromin Pty Lid
Santos {299) Pty Ltd ©
Santes Exploration Pty Ltd
Santos Gnuco Pty Ltd
Transoil Pty Lid
Santos Resources Pty Ltd
Santos (TGR) Pty Ltd
Santos Timor Sea Pipeline Pty Lid
Sesap Pty Ltd
Vvamgas Pty Ltd ?

AUST
AUST
AUST
UK
AUST
AUST
PNG
AUST

AUST
PNG
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

AUST
AUST

MY
AUST
AUST

AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST
AUST

1. Beneficial interests in all controlled entities are
100%, except CJSC South Petroleum Company

which is 70%.

2. Company is party o a Deed of Cross Guarantee.

Refer note 37.
3. Company incorporated during the year.

s

S, Company approved for liquidation.

Company acquired during the year. Refer note 26.
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Consolidated Entities (continued)
Notes

Country of incorporation

AUST - Australia

BD Bangladesh

KGZ - Kyrgyz Republic

MY - Malaysia

NL Netherlands

PNG - Papua New Guinea

SG - Singapore

UK - United Kingdom

usa - United States of America

In the financial staternents of the Company, investments in controlled entities are recognised at
cost, less any impairment losses.

Acquisitions of Subsidiaries

During the financial year the following controlled entities were acquired and their operating results
have been included in the income statement from the date of acquisition:

Contribution to

Beneficial consolidated
Date of interest Purchase profit since
Name of entity acquisition acquired consideration acquisition
% $million . $million

Petroleurn Ventures B.V. 22 January 2007 100 14.1 (3.4)
Gidgealpa Oil Pty Ltd 7 June 2007 100 1.7 -
Bronco Energy Pty Ltd 25 June 2007 100 10.7 -
Caim Energy

Bangladesh Limited 25 October 2007 100 62.9 {0.6)

Petroleum Ventures B.V. holds a.- 37.5% interest in Block 12 Production Sharing Contract,
covering approximately 5,160 square kilometres in the Nam Con Son Basin, offshore southern
Vietnam. Santos acquired the share capital in Petroleum Ventures B.V. following the completion
of a farm in agreement to fund a proportion of the costs of a two-well drilling program in 2006,
and the receipt of necessary approvals from the Government of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam,

Gidgealpa Oil Ply Lid holds a 4.9% interest in ATP 269F Coolum Block located in South West
Queensland and is engaged in the exploration and production of ail.

Bronco Energy Pty Ltd holds interests in coal seam gas assets located in permits ATP 613P,
ATP 735P, ATP BO3P and ATP 804P in Eastern Queensland. The assets are not currently
producing and the company has no operating revenue. The purchase price includes a
performance payment of $3.0 million payable upon the existence of 2P reserves in the Permit
Area such that Bronco Energy Pty Lid’'s share of production of those reserves would be 100PJ,
and a second performance payment of $5.0 million when Bronco Energy Pty Lid's share of
production of those 2P reserves would be 200PJ.
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Acquisitions of Subsidiaries (continued)
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Caim Energy Bangladesh Limited holds a 37.5% interest in the Sangu gas field and a portfolio of
interests in exploration acreage located offshore Bangladesh. The consideration for the acquisition
comprises the initial payment of A$62.8 million, and contingent consideration of US$20 million
payable in two tranches, the first tranche of US$10 miillion is payable on determination of the wells
being a commercial success, and the second tranche of US$10 million is payable on first
production. This acquisition has been provisionally accourted at the balance date, as all the
required information has not yet been received from the vendor to enable the fair value of the net

assets acquired to be finally determined.

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2007, there would have been a $27.8 million
increase in Group revenue and net profit would have decreased by $16.1 million,

The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Exploration and evaluation assets
Qil and gas assets

Deferred tax assels

Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Net identifiable assets and liabilities

Cost of the combination:
Cash paid
Deferred consideration
Direct costs relating to the acquisitions

Total cost of the acquisitions

The cash outflow on acquisition is as
follows:
Cash paid
Net cash acquired with subsidiaries
Direct costs relating to the acquisitions
Deferred consideration paid

Net consolidated cash outflow

Carrying Fair value Recognised
amounts adjustments values
$million $million $million
7.4 - 7.4
15.1 - 15.1
21.0 353 56.3
32.8 17.7 50.5
20 - 2.0
{24.7) - (24.7)
(1.2) {16.0) {17.2)
52.4 37.0 89.4
80.4
8.0
1.0
89.4
(80.4)
7.4
(1.0)
(1.7)
{75.7)

In 2006, the Group acquired 70% beneficial interest in CJSC South Petroleumn Company for

$10.5 million.
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27. Interests in Joint Ventures

(a)

(b)

Joint venture

Cash-generating unit

Principal activities

Server

The following are the significant joint ventures in which the Group is a joint venturer:

% Interest

QOil and gas asssets -
Producing assets

Bayu-Undan Liquids

Bayu-Undan LNG

Casino

Fairview

Madura PSC

Mereenie

John Brookes

Mutineer-Exeter

Oyong

Sangu

Stag

SA Fixed Factor Area

SWQ Unit

Oil and gas assets -
Assets in
development

Hides

Kipper

Reindeer

Exploration and
evaluation assets

Evans Shoal

Jernuk

Bayu-Undan
Bayu-Undan
Casino
Fairview
Madura PSC
Mereenie
John Broockes
Mutineer-Exeter
Sampang PSC
Sangu PSC
Stag

Cooper Basin
Cooper Basin

Hides
Kipper
Reindeer

Sampang PSC

Gas production 11.4*
Gas production 11.4 *
Gas production 50.0
Gas production 76.1
Gas production 67.5
Oil and gas production 65.0
Gas production 45.0
Qil production 33.4
Oil and gas production 45.0
Gas production 37.5
Qil and gas production 66.7
Oil and gas production 66.6
Gas production 60.1
Gas development 31.0
Gas development 50.0
Gas development 450
Contingent gas resource 40.0
Oil resource 45.0

Joint venture entity

The Group recognises its interests in the following
proportionate consalidation method of accounting:

jointly controlled entities using the

% Interest

Darwin LNG Pty Ltd
Fairview Power Pty Ltd

Easternwell Drilling Services Holdings Pty Lid

11.4*
50.0
50.0

The Group's interest in the Bayu-Undan field increased from 10.6% to 11.4% in
June 2007 as the result of a formal redetermination process.
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(c)
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million $Smillion  $million $million
The Group's share of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the jointly
controlled entities, which are included in
the consolidated financial statements using
the proportionate consolidation method of
accounting, are as follows:
Current assets 46.0 70.6 - -
Non-current assets 148.1 161.5 - -
194 .1 2321 - -
Current liabilities (62.9) (19.2}) - -
Non-current liabilities (4.3) (8.3) - -
Net assets 126.9 204.6 - -
Revenue a8.2 80.5 - -
Expenses {96.0) (70.3) - -
Profit before income tax 2.2 20.2 - -
The Group’s share of capital expenditure
commitments and minimum exploration
commitments in respect of joint ventures
are;
Capital expenditure commitments 287.4 264.0 154.4 101.5
Minimum exploration commitments 336.0 149.2 35.0 18.5
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million $million $million Smillion
28. Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating
Activities
Profit/(loss) after income tax 440.6 6434 1,274.0 {110.5)
Add/(deduct) non-cash items:
Depreciation and depletion 759.3 692.2 419.3 418.4
Net impairment (reversal)/ioss of investment in
controlled entities - - (380.7) 325.7
Impairment loss on receivables due from
controlled entities - - 25.3 6.3
Exploration and evaluation expensed 2348 347.8 54.2 19.9
Net impairment loss of oil and gas assets - 16.3 56.6 2.9
Foreign exchange debt hedging losses/(gains) 1.5 {0.2) - -
Share-based payments expense 5.2 26 5.2 2.6
Borrowing costs capitalised (6.3) (14.5) - -
Unwind aof the effect of discounting on
provisions 239 25.4 85 83
Change in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through profit and loss 1.9 (18.8) 1.3 (1.3)
Defined benefit plan expense 5.6 4.3 5.6 4.3
Foreign currency flucluations 0.5 (0.8) 0.7 0.5
Net loss/(gain) on sale of non-current assets 2.8 (42.1) (1.7) (6.1)
Net gain on sale of avallable-for-sale financial
assets (33.4) - (13.9) -
Net loss on sale of discontinued operations 67.7 - - -
Net cash provided by operating activities befare
changes in assets or liabilities 1,514 1 1,655.6 1,454.4 671.0
Add/{deduct) change in operating assets or
liabilities net of acquisitions or disposals of
businesses:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables (90.2) 23.2 {0.9) 75.0
Increase in inventories {49.8) (40.4) (38.8) (7.7)
Decrease/{increase) in other assets 21 (12.9) {1.9) 15.4
Net decrease in deferred fax assets and
deferred tax liabilities {46.8) {42.5) {14.5) (97.7)
{Decrease)/increase in current tax liabilities {181.2) 30.2 (178.5) (87.8)
Increase/(decrease)} in trade and other payables 59.6 (95.6) 19.4 13.2
Increase in provisions 6.1 32.7 2.7 19.3
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,213.9 1,550.3 1,241.9 6500.9
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million $million $million $million
29. Employee Benefits
(a) Liability for defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit members of the Santos
Superannuation Plan receive a lump sum
benefit on retirement, death, disablement
and withdrawal. The defined benefit
section of the Plan is closed to new
members. All new members receive
accumulation only benefits.
Defined benefit plan
Amount recognised in the balance sheet:

Deficit in plan recognised in non-current

provisions (refer note 21) 16.3 26.3 16.3 26.3
Other non-current assets (refer note 17) (4.9) {(7.9) {4.9) {7.9)
11.4 18.4 11.4 18.4

Movements in the liability for net defined
benetit obligations recognised in the
balance sheet
Liability at start of year 18.4 11.3 18.4 11.3
Expense recognised in income statement 56 4.3 56 4.3
Amount recognised in retained earnings (6.3) 9.0 (6.3) 9.0
Employer contributions (6.3) (6.2) (6.3) {6.2)
Liability at end of year 11.4 18.4 11.4 18.4

Historical information for the current and
previous periods

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of Plan assets

Deficit in Plan

Experience adjustments on Plan assets
Experience adjustments on Plan liabilities

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of Plan assets

Deficit in Plan

Experience adjustments on Plan assets
Experience adjustments on Plan liabilities

CONSOLIDATED

2007 2006 2005 2004
$million Srmiilion $million $million
161.8 158.2 129.5 126.5
(145.5)  (131.9)  (113.4) (108.7)
16.3 26.3 16.1 17.8
(4.0) (6.3) (8.0) (5.5)
(1.2) 17.5 {0.1) (4.5)

SANTOS LTD

2007 2006 2005 2004
$million  $million $million $million
161.8 158.2 129.5 126.5
(145.5) (131.9)  (113.4) (108.7)
16.3 26.3 16.1 17.8
(4.0) (6.3) (8.0) (5.5)
{1.2) 17.5 {0.1) (4.5)
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Smillion
29. Employee Benefits
(a) Liability for defined benefit obligations (continued)
Reconciliation of the present value of the
net defined benefit ebligations
Opening net defined benefit obligations 110.8 90.7 110.8 90.7
Service cost 6.4 54 6.4 5.4
Interest cost 5.6 4.3 56 4.3
Contributions by Plan participants 6.3 4.9 6.3 4.9
Actuarial {gains)/losses (3.5) 13.4 (3.5) 13.4
Benefits paid (11.0) (6.2) {(11.0) {6.2)
Taxes and premiums paid {1.6) (2.2) (1.6) {2.2)
Transfers in/{out) 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.5
Closing net defined benefit obligations 113.2 110.8 113.2 110.8
Reconciliation of the fair value of net Plan
assets
Opening fair value of net Plan assets 92.4 79.4 92.4 79.4
Expected retum on Plan assets 6.4 55 6.4 5.5
Actuarial gains 2.8 4.4 2.8 4.4
Employer contributions 6.3 6.1 6.3 6.1
Contributions by Plan participants 6.3 4.9 6.3 4.9
Benefits paid {11.0) (6.2) (11.0) {6.2)
Taxes and premiums paid {1.6) (2.2) {1.8) (2.2)
Transfers in/(out) 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.5
Closing fair value of net Plan assets 101.8 92.4 101.8 92.4
Plan assets
The percentage invested in each asset class
at the balance sheet date:
CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Yo % % %
Australian equity 33 36 33 36
International equity 28 28 28 28
Fixed income 13 15 13 15
Property 9 8 9 8
Cash 17 13 17 13
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Employee Benefits (continued)
{a) Llability for defined benefit obligations {continued)

Fair value of Plan assets

The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to:

= any of the Group's own financial instruments,

» any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group.

Fax Server

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million  $million $million  $million
Actual return on Plan assets
Actual return on Plan assets 9.2 9.9 9.2 9.9

Expected rate of return on Plan assets

The expected return on asseis assumption is determined by weighting the expected long-
term retum for each asset class by the target allocation of assets to each assel class and
allowing for the correlations of the invesiment returns between asset classes. The returns
used for each asset class are net of investment tax and investment fees. An allowance for
asset-based administration expenses has also been deducted from the expected return.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the

balance sheet date {expressed as 2007 2006
weighted average} % pa % pa
Discount rate 53 49
Expectled rate of return on Plan assels 6.9 6.9
Expected average salary increase rate over

the life of the Plan 6.0 6.9

The expected rate of return on Plan assets includes a reduction to allow for the administrative

expenses of the Plan.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million  $million  $million  $million
Expense recognised in the income
statements
Service cost 6.4 5.4 6.4 5.4
Interest cost 5.6 4.3 5.6 4.3
Expected return on Plan assets (6.4) (5.4) (6.4) (5.4)
5.6 4.3 5.6 4.3
The expense is recognised in the following
line items in the income statemants;
Other expenses - - - -
Financial expenses 5.6 4.3 5.6 4.3
5.6 4.3 5.6 4.3
Amount recognised in the statements ot
recognised income and expense
Actuarial gains/(losses) 6.3 {9.0) 6.3 (9.0}
Tax effect {1.9) 2.7 (1.9) 2.7
Actuarial gains/{losses) 4.4 (6.3) 4.4 (6.3)
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Employee Benetits (continued)
{a) Liability for defined benefit obligations (continued)

Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute $6.6 million to the defined benefit superannuation plan in
2008.

(b) Defined contribution plans

The Group makes contributions to several defined contribution plans. The amount
recognised as an expense for the year was $8.5 million (2006: $5.7 million).

Share-based Payment Plans
(a) Current General Employee Share Plans
The Company currently operates two general employee share plans:

. the Santos Employee Share Acquisition Plan (“SESAP"™); and
. the Santos Employee Share Purchase Plan (“SESPP").

Both of these plans have operated since 1997.

SESAP

Broadly, SESAP provides for permanent eligible employees with at least a minimum period
of service determined by Directors as at the offer date (one year of completed service for
issues so far) to be entitled to acquire shares under this Plan. Execulives participating in the
Executive Long-terrn Incentive Program in 2007, casual employees and Directors of the
Company are excluded from participating in this Plan. Employees are not eligible to
participate under the Plan while they are residemt overseas unless the Board decides
otherwise.

The Plan provides for grants of fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company up to
a value delermined by the Board which, to date, has been $1,000 per annum per eligible
employee. A frustee is funded by the Group to acquire shares directly from the Company or
on market. The shares are then held by the trustee on behalf of eligible employees who
participate in the Plan,

The employee’s ownership of shares allocated under the Plan, and his or her right to deal
with them, are subject to restrictions until the earlier of the expiration of the restriction period
determined by the Board (being three years) and the time when he or she ceases to be an
employee. Paricipants are entitled to instruct the trustee as to the exercise of voting rights,
receive dividends and participate in bonus and rights issues during the restriction period.
Shares are granted to eligible employees at no cost to the employee.
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(a)

Current General Employee Share Plans (continued)

Summary of share movements in the SESAP during 2007 (and comparative 2006
information):

OPENING GRANTED DURING DISTRIBUTIONS
BALANCE THE YEAR DURING THE YEAR CLOSING BALANCE
Falr
value per Falr value Falr value
Grant dates Number Number share Number aggregate Number aggregate
$ $ 5
2007 )
22 November 2004 127,002 - - 127,002 1,679,902 - -
18 November 2005 96,272 - - 6,424 81,065 89,848 1,268,654
17 November 2006 113,620 - - 8,464 107,105 105,156 1,484,803
20 November 2007 - 100,650 13.33 825 11471 - 99,825 1,409,529
336,894 100,650 142,715 1,879,543 294,829 4,162 986
2006
2 Sepiember 2003 173,223 - - 173,223 1,833,837 - -
22 November 2004 137,006 - - 10,004 116,798 127,002 1,253,510
18 November 2005 104,456 - - 8,184 95,025 96,272 950,205
17 November 2006 - 114,356 10.88 736 7,481 113,620 1,121,429
414,685 114.356 192,147 2,153,141 336,894 3,325,144

Shares are allocated at a price equal to the weighted average sale price of the Company's
ordinary shares on the ASX during the one week periad up to and including the Grant Date.
This is shown as fair value per share for shares granted during the year. The fair value of
shares distributed from the trust during the year and remaining in the trust at the end of the
financial year is the market price of shares of the Company on the ASX as at close of trading
on the respective dates.

Distributions during the year accurred at various dates throughout the year and therefore
have not been separately listed.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
relation to SESAP during the year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion Smillion  $million
Employee expenses 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.2
Issued ordinary share capital 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.2

At 31 December 2007, the total number of shares acquired under the Plan since its
commencement was 2,196,037,

SESPP

The general employee offer under SESPP is open to all employees {other than a casual
employee or Director of the Company) determined by the Board who are continuing
employees at the date of the offer. However, employees who are not resident in Australia at
the time of an offer under the Plan and those who have participated in the Executive Long-
term Incentive Program during the year will not be eligible to participate in that offer unless
the Board otherwise decides.
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)
{(a) Current General Employee Share Plans (continued)

SESPP (continued)

Under the Plan, eligible employees may be offered the opportunity to subscribe for or
acquire fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at a discount to market price,
subject to restrictions, including on disposal, determined by the Board (which has been a
period of one year for issues so far). The subscription or acquisition price is Market Value
(being the weighted average sale price of the Company's ordinary shares on the ASX during
the one week period up to and including the offer date) less any discount determined by the
Board (5% for issues so far). Under the Plan, at the discretion of the Board, financial
assistance may be provided to employees to subscribe for and acquire shares under the
Plan. The 5% discount constitutes financial assistance for these purposes. Paricipants are
entitled te vote, receive dividends and participate in bonus and rights issues while the shares
are restricted.

On 20 November 2007, the Company issued 400 ordinary shares to 4 eligible employees at
a subscription price of $14.93 per share under the Plan, being a 5% discount on the Market
Value of $15.72. The total market price of those shares on the issue date was $5,280, being
the market price at the close of trade on the date of issue {($13.20). The total amount
received from employees for those shares was $5,972,

A summary of share movements in the SESPP are set out below:

OPENING GRANTED DURING RESTRICTION CEASED CLOSING
BALANCE THE YEAR BURING THE YEAR BALANCE
Falr value
Grant dates Number Number per share  Number Date Number
$
2007
17 November 2006 62,900 - - 62,900 17 November 2007 -
20 November 2007 - 400 15.72 - 400
62,800 400 62,000 400
2006
18 November 2005 49,800 - - 49,800 18 November 2006 -
17 November 2006 - 62,000 10.48 - - 62,900
49,800 62,900 48,800 62,500

The fair value per share for shares granted during the year is Market Value (as defined
above). The consideration received by the Company per share is Market Value less the
discount of 5% referred to above.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
relation to the general employee offer under the SESPP during the year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Smillion
Issued ordinary share capital - 0.6 - 0.6

At 31 December 2007, the total number of shares acquired under the general employee
offer of the Plan since its commencement was 822,300,
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program

The Company’s Executive Long-term Incentive Program provides for invitations 1o be
extended to eligible executives selected by the Board.

The Program currently consists of an offer of securities under;

. the Santos Employee Share Purchase Plan (*SESPP"); and
. the Santos Executive Share QOption Plan (“SESOP™),

SESOP has operated since 1997 and the SESPP has been used as a component of
executive compensation since 2003,

SARs and options

Each SAR and option is a conditional entitlement to a fully paid ordinary share, subject to the
satisfaction of performance conditions, on terms and conditions determined by the Board.

SARs and options carry no voting or dividend rights until the perforrmance conditions are
satisfied and, in the case of options, when the options are exercised or, in the case of SARs,
when the SARs vest.

CEO options

The Managing Director receives his long-term incentives in the form of options granted
under the SESQOP. Each option entitles Mr Ellice-Flint to acquire one fully paid ordinary
share in the Company at a predetermined price, subject to satisfaction of vesting conditions.
The grant size is determined by reference to the median grant size given to executives in
sirnilar roles in comparable companies.

No options were granted to Mr Ellice-Flint in 2007.

At the 2006 AGM, shareholder approval was given for the grant of three tranches of options
to Mr Ellice-Flint as follows:

Tranche Number of options Performance period
1 500,000 4 May 2006 — 26 August 2007
2 1,000,000 4 May 2006 — 26 August 2008
3 1,000,000 4 May 2006 — 26 August 2009

The exercise price for the options granted is $11.36, being the volume weighted average
price in the ten days up to and including 9 March 2006 as approved by shareholders on
4 May 2006.

Vesting of each tranche of options is based on two performance conditions, each applying to
one half of the tranche:

. relative Total Shareholder Retum (*TSR") against the ASX 100 at the beginning of the
performance period; and

. relative TSR against a group of Australian and intermational exploration and
production (“E&P") companies.
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program {continued)
SARs and options (continued)

CEO options {(continued)

At the time of grant, the Board considered the ASX 100 and E&P companies to be
reasonable comparators against the market generally, and against Santos’ peers. The E&P
comparator group comprises: Anadarke Petroleum Ltd, Apache Corp, Australian Worldwide
Exploration Ltd, Cairn Energy PLC, Chesapeake Energy Corp, EOG Resource Inc, Forest
Oil Corp, Hardman Resources Ltd, Kerr McGee Corp, Murphy Oil Corp, Newfield Exploration
Co, Nexen Inc, Noble Energy Inc, Qil Search Ltd, Pioneer Natural Resources Co, Pogo
Producing Co, Premier Qil PLC, Talisman Energy Inc, Woodside Petroleum Ltd and XTO
Energy Inc.

The options granted vest according to the following schedule:;

Santos TSR percentile ranking % of grant vesting

< 50th percentile 0%

= 50th percentile 50%

51st to 74th percentile 52% to 98% (additional 2% for each percentile
improvement)

z 75th percentile 100%

Performance conditions may be retested quarterly during the 12-month period commencing
on the earliest exercise date far a tranche. If the performance conditions are not satisfied at
the end of that 12-month retesting period, the options in that tranche will lapse.

Consistent with the terms of his service agreement, the Managing Director’s oplions may
vest and become exercisable upon cessation of his employment, whether vesting occurs will
depend on the circumstances - for example, where the Managing Director retires by mutual
agreement with the Board, his outstanding options may vest and become exercisable at the
Board's discretion. However, no options will vest or become exercisable where the
Company terrninates the Managing Director’s employment for cause.

in addition, where an entity becomes entitled to more than 30% of the Company's total
number of voting shares, the Managing Director will be entitled to exercise his outstanding
options unless the Board, in its discretion, determines otherwise.

Tranche 1 options were tested against the performance conditions in 2007, with the
following results:

ASX 100 E&P
comparator group comparator group
(applying to (applying to
250,000 options) 250,000 options)

Santos TSR ranking at 26 August 2007 22™ percentile 50 percentile
Santos TSR ranking at 26 Novermber 2007 40" percentile 50™ percentile
(first re-test)

Number of options exercisable Nil 125,000

Tranche 1 options still not vested by 26 August 2008 will lapse.
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30. Share-based Payment Plans {continued}

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)
SARs and options {continued)

CEO options (continued)

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Monte Caro simulation method. The
contractual life .of the option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the models.

2007 2006
CEO options CEO options
Option Grant Tranche Tranche 2 Tranche 3
1

Fair value at grant date - $1.77 $1.94 $2.05
Share price on grant date - 3$11.48 $11.48 $11.48
Exercise price - $11.36 $11.36 $11.36
Expected volatility (weighted - 23.0% pa 23.0% pa 23.0% pa
average)
Option life (weighted average) - 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends - 3.3% pa 3.3% pa 3.3% pa
Risk free interest rates (based -

on government bond yields):

Australia - 5.4% pa 5.4% pa 5.4% pa

United States ) - 3.6% pa 3.6% pa 3.6% pa

United Kingdom - 4.5% pa 4.5% pa 4.5% pa

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility {calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any expecied changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

Eligible senior executives
The Company made two LTI grants to its senior executives in 2007. These were:

e a “Performance Granmt” subject to satisfaction of performance conditions linked to
delivery of sustained returns to shareholders; and

= a “Growth Award” that has a specific retention focus and is subject to a service
condition.

Both the Perforrnance Grant and the Growth Award were granted, at the executive's
election, in the form of either SARs {under the SESPP) or Options (under the SESOP).

SARs and options were granted at no cost to the executives with the number of SARs
awarded being determined by dividing the amount of the award by the volume weighted
average price of the Company's shares over the week up to and including the award date.
The number of options awarded is of equivalent value calculated by an independent expert
based on an acceptable valuation method.
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b) Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)

SARs and options (continued)

Eligible senior executives (continued)
Vesting details of the Performance Grant and the Growth Award are summansed in the table below:

Performance Grant Growth Award
Vesting period ! 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009. i1 July 2007 to 30 June 2010, except for
_ : MrD JKnox (see below).
Vesting condition ! Vesting of this grant is based on two performance conditions, each applying to 50% i Forall senior executives except Mr D J Knox,
: of the grant: : vesting of the Growth Award is based on
; - relative TSR against Australian and intemationat E&P companies; and ¢ continuous service to 30 June 2010, or three
- an annualised compound absolute TSR target of 11% over the : years from the grant date.
: performance period. ;
i The E&P companies are: Anadarko Petroleum Ltd, Apache Comp, Australian i For Mr D J Knox, vesting of the Growth
i Worldwide Exploration Ltd, Caim Energy PLC, Chesapeake Energy Corp, EOG ¢ Award is based on continuous service to
i Resource Inc, Forest Oil Corp, Murphy Oil Corp, Newfield Exploration Co, Nexen i 2 September 2010, which is three years from
i Inc, Noble Energy tnc, Oif Search Ltd, Pioneer Natural Resources Co, Pogo : his date of commencement with the
! Producing Co, Premier Oil PLC, Talisman Energy Inc, Woodside Petroleum Ltd and ¢ Company.
: XTQ Energy Inc. :
Vesting schedule i Relative TSR condition i 0% if the continuous service condition is not
* Santos TSR Percentile Ranki : met.
i <50" percentile 0%
i = 50" percentile 50% ¢ 100% if the continugus service condition is
: 51% to 74" percentile 52% to 98% {additional 2% for each : met. :
' percentile improvement) :
i 2 75th percentile 100% i

{ Absolute TSR condition m
; 0% if annualised compound TSR is less than 11%. :
100% if annualised compound TSR is 11% or greater.

Exercise price . $14.14 for options, being the volume weighted average price in the week up to and . As for Performance Grant.
_including the grant date of 1 July 2007.
SARs have no exercise price. .

There is no re-testing of the performance conditions if they are not satisfied.

Re-testing of performance Not applicable.

conditions
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b}

Executive Long-term Incentive Program {continued)
SARs and options {continued)

Eligible senior executives (continued)

Upon cessation of employment, SARs which have not already vested and options which are
not exaercisable will, in general, lapse and be forfeited. However, if cessation occurs due to
death, disability or redundancy, or in special circumstances approved by the Board, then a
proportion of the SARs and options may vest and become exercisabte.

Where there is a change in contro!, the Board may determine whether, and the extent to
which, SARs and options may vest.

During the financial year, the Company granted 421,200 oplions over unissued shares as
set out below.

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
Outstanding at the beginning of
the period $8.76 2,448,826 $7.47 2,418,328
Granted during the period $13.82 421,200 $10.48 897,700
Forfeited during the period - {335,900} - (280,500)
Exercised during the period $6.57 {455,398) $9.81 (586,702)
Outstanding at the end of the
period $10.27 2,078,728 58.76 2,448 826
Exercisable at the end of the period $7.23 180,128 3$6.67 435,526

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 have an exercise price in the range of $6.95
to $14.14, and a weighted average contractual life of 9.6 years,

During the year 455,398 options were exercised (2006: 586,702). The weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise was $13.96 (2006: $9.81).

The fair value of shares issued as a result of exercising the options or vesting of SARs
during the reporting period at their issue date is the market price of shares of the Company
on the ASX as at close of trading.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
relation to executive share options exercised during the financial year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million Smillion $million Srmillion

Issued ordinary share capital 3.0 3.9 3.0 3.9
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program {continued)
SARs and options (continued)

Eligible senior executives (continued)

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Monte Caro simulation method. The
contractual life of the option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the models.

2007 2006

Performance Performance
Award Growth Award Award

Option Grant E1 GA1 GA2 D
Fair value at grant date $3.32 $3.87 $1.97 $0.76
Share price on grant date $13.94 $13.04 $13.25 $10.27
Exercise price $14.14 $14.14 $12.81 $10.48
Expected volatility (weighted
average) 24.2% pa 24.2% pa 23.9% pa 22.0% pa
Option life (weighted average) 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expecied dividends 3.5% pa 3.5% pa 3.5% pa 3.9% pa
Risk free interest rate (based on

government bond yields):

Australia 6.26% pa 6.26% pa 6.26% pa 6.00% pa

United States 5.00% pa nfa r/a 4.50% pa

United Kingdom 5.36% pa nfa n/a 4.75% pa

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility {calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

During the financial year, the Company granted 880,000 SARs as set out below. Shares
allocated on vesting of SARs will be subject to further restrictions on dealing for a maximum
of ten years after the original grant date. No amount is payable on grant or vesting of the
SARs.

Number of SARs
2007 2006
Quistanding at the beginning of the period 758,900 809,500
Granted during the period 880,000 289,600
Forfeited during the period {273,100) (212,350)
Vested during the period - (127,850)
Qutstanding at the end of the period 1,365,800 758,500
Exercisable at the end of the period - 219,300

The fair value of services received in return for SARs granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of SARs granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services received is
measured based on the Monte Carlo simulation method. The contractual life of the SARs is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Monte Carlo simulation method.
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Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)
SARs and options (continued)

Eligible senior executives (continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share rights), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

2007 2006
Growth Performance
Performance Award Award Award
SARs grant E1 E2 GA1 D
Fair value at grant date $9.95 $9.16 $12.78 $2.86
Share price on grant date $13.94 $13.25 $13.94 $10.27
Exercise price - - - -
Expected volatility (weighted ,
average) 24.2% pa 23.9% pa 24.2% pa 22.0% pa
Right life (weighted average) 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends 3.5% pa 3.5% pa 3.5% pa 3.9% pa
Risk free interest rate (based
on government bond yields):
Australia 6.26% pa 6.26% pa 6.26% pa 6.00% pa
United States 500% pa 4.55% pa nfa 4.50% pa
United Kingdom 5.36% pa 5.75% pa nfa 4.75% pa

The amounts recognised in the income statements of the Group and the Cormpany during
the financial year in relation to equity grants issued under the Executive Long-term Incentive
Program were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$Smillion $million $million Smillion

Employee expenses:

CEO options 1.9 1.4 1.9 1.4
Executive share options 0.7 0.5 0.7 0.5
SARs 2.6 0.7 2.6 0.7
5.2 2.6 5.2 2.6

Shares

The shares allocated pursuant to the SESPP were allotted to a trustee at no cost to
participants, to be held on their behalf. The allocation price is Market Value (as defined
below) and the trustee was funded by the Company te subscribe for the shares.

In general the shares were restricted for a period of cne year from the date of allotment. If a
participating executive ceased employment during this period, the Board in its discretion
could determine that a lesser restriction on transfer and dealing applied, having regard to the
circumstances of the cessation. The shares can remain on trust for up to ten years from the
date of allotment, during which time the shares are subject to forfeiture if participants act
fraudulently or dishonestly or in breach of their obligations to any Group company.
Participants are entitled to instruct the trustee as to the exercise of voting rights, receive
dividends and participate in bonus and rights issues while the shares are held on trust.

No shares have been issued under the executive long-term incentive component of the Plan
since 2004. At 31 December 2007, the total number of shares acquired under the executive
long-term incentive component of the Plan since its commencement was 220,912,
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30. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

{c)

(d)

Legacy Plan - Santos Executive Share Plan

The Santos Executive Share Plan operated between 1987 and 1997, when it was
discontinued. Under the terms of the Plan, shares were issued as partly paid to one cent.
While partly paid, the Plan shares are not transferable, cany no veting right and no
entitlement to dividend but are entitled to participate in any bonus or rights issue. After a
“vesting” period, calls could be made for the balance of the issue price of the shares, which
varied between $2 and the market price of the shares on the date of the call being made.
Shares were issued principally on: 22 December 1987: 7 February and 5 December 1989,
and 24 December 1980. .

At the beginning of the financial year there were 88,000 Plan shares on issue. During the
financial year no Plan shares were fully paid and no aggregate proceeds were received by
the Company. As at 31 December 2007 there were 88,000 Plan Shares outstanding.

Non-Executive Director (“NED”’) Share Plan

In accordance with shareholder approval given at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the
Non-executive Director (“NED”) Share Plan was introduced in July 2007. Participation in the
NED Share Plan is voluntary and all present and future non-executive Directors are eligible
1o participate. Under the NED Share Plan, Directors elect to sacrifice all or part of their pre-
tax fees in return for an allocation of fully paid ordinary shares of equivalent value. The NED
Share Plan therefore does not involve any additional remuneration for participating Directors.

Shares are allocated quarterly and are either issued as new shares or purchased on the
ASX at the prevailing market price. The shares are registered in the name of the
participating Director, but are subject to a restriction on dealing. In the absence of
exceptional circumstances, the restriction will apply until the Director ceases to hold office or
until ten years have elapsed since the allocation of the shares, whichever is earlier.

In 2007, 9,419 shares were allocated to participating Directors on 10 Qctober 2007 at
$15.4326 per share and 7,896 shares were allocated to participating Directors on
28 December 2007 at $13.5843 per share.

31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures

{a)

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and the Company, directly or
indirectly, including the Directors of the Company.

The following were key management personne! of the Group and the Company at any time
during the reporting period and unless otherwise indicated were key management personnel
for the entire period.

Directors
Name Position
Borda, Kenneth Charles Non-executive Director (appointed 14 February 2007)
Dean, Kenneth Alfred Non-executive Director
Ellice-Flint, John Charles Managing Director
Franklin, Roy Alexander Non-executive Director
Gerlach, Stephen Chairman and non-executive Director
Harding, Richard Michael Non-executive Director

Sloan, Judith Non-executive Director
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Key Management Personnel Disclosures

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel {(continued)

Executives
Name Position
Anderson, John Hugh Vice President — Strategic Projects
Baulderstone, James Leslie General Counsel and Company Secretary
{appointed 29 January 2007)
Brown, Trevor John Vice President — Geoscience and New Ventures
Eames, Martyn Edward James Vice President — Corporate and People
Kennett, Roger Maxwell Vice President — Operations {(appointed 1 June 2007)
Knox, David John Executive Vice President - Growth Businesses
{appointed 3 September 2007)
Macfarlane, Mark Stuart Vice President — Development
Wasow, Peter Christopher Chief Financial Officer
Wilkinson, Richard John Vice President — Gas Markeling and Commercialisation
Young, Jonathon Terence Executive Vice President — Corporate Projects

(appointed 1 June 2007, previously Executive Vice
President — Operations)

All executives are employed by Santos Lid,

Key management personnel compensation

The Remuneration Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing the remuneration
policies and practices of the Company including: the remuneration arrangements for the
Managing Director and senior management; the Company’s superannuation arrangements;
employee share and option plans; and fees for non-executive Directors.

The Company's remuneration policy as set by the Board has a number of principal
objectives which are critical to the delivery of the Company’s overall strategic objectives. An
overriding objective is to align employee remuneration with long-term shareholder value
creation. In order {o achieve this objective, the Company must aftract and retain
appropriately qualified and experienced Direclors, executives and staff.

In addition to attracting and retaining talent, Santos' remuneration strategy also aims to
encourage its employees to strive for superior performance by rewarding the achievement of
targets that are fair, challenging, clearly understood and within the controi of employees to
achieve through their own actions. For the Company’s most senior staff, performance
targets are primarily aligned with long-term shareholder value creation.

Non-executive Directors

Total non-executive Directors’ fees paid in a year, including Board committee fees, cannot
exceed $1,500,000. This amount was approved by sharehclders at the Annual General
Meeting held on 7 May 2004. Directors may also be paid additional fees for special duties or
exertions, and are entitted 1o be reimbursed for all business-related expenses. These
payments are not included in the maximum aggregate amount approved by shareholders.
No additional fees were paid during the year.

Superannuation contributions are made on behalf of non-executive Directors in accordance
with the requirements of the Company’s statutory superannuation obligations.

Non-executive Directors appointed prior to 1 January 2004 (“Participating Directors™) are
contractually entitled 1o receive benefits upon their retirement pursuant to agreements
entered into upon their appointment, the terms of which were approved by shareholders at
the 1989 AGM. Non-executive Directars appointed after 1 January 2004 are not entitled to
receive a benefit upon retirement other than statutory entitiements.
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31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures {(continued)

(b}

Key management personnel compensation (continued)
Non-executive Directors (continued)

The retirement benefits of Participating Directors were frozen with effect from 30 June 2004,
at which time their entitlements ceased to accrue. However, to prevent erosion in the real
value of the frozen benefits, the Board determined that the benefits will be indexed annually
against the five-year Australian Govemment Bond Rate with-effect from 1 July 2007.

In accordance with shareholder approval given at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the
NED Share Plan was introduced in July 2007. Participation in the NED Share Plan, through
which Non-Executive Directors may elect to sacrifice all or part of their pre-tax fees in return
for an allocation of shares of equivalent value, is voluntary. Further details are provided in
note 30(d).

Managing Director
Elements of remuneration

Total remuneration for the Managing Director is made up of the following components:
Base remuneration — comprising salary and superannuation;
Shortterm incentive (“STI") — an annual bonus linked to Company performance and
achievement of strategic objectives; and

= Long-term incentive (“LTI"} — equity grants linked to vesting conditions dependent on
Santos’ achievement of superior performance relative to its peers.

Base remuneration

Mr Ellice-Flint is paid a salary from which he may, if he wishes, sacrifice a proportion for
benefits such as a novated car lease. The Board receives external advice on Mr Ellice-Flint's
base remuneration, which is market-aligned by comparison to that of Managing Direclors of
comparable Australian companies,

The Company funds Mr Ellice-Flint's defined benefit superannuation plan. On his birthday in
2007 he became entitled to a superannuation payment of 3.22 times final average salary.
This multiple increases at a rate of approximately 0.5 times final average salary on each
subsequent birthday urtil the mulliple is capped at 6.0 times final average salary al 62 years
of age.

Short-term incentive (“STI")

Mr Eilice-Flint's STl is based on a number of agreed annual objectives linked to Comparny
performance objectives and delivery of strategic growth initiatives. Consistent with his role as
Managing Director, the performance measures for Mr Ellice-Flint's ST! comprise a
combination of operational, financial, budgetary and ongoing strategic targets that are directly
related 1o the strategic objectives set by the Board for the relevant financial year.

The Remuneration Committee assesses performance against Mr Ellice-Flint's objectives
annually and makes a recommendation to the Board. These objectives are directly linked to
the priorities and performance of the Company across a range of measures including an
over-riding focus on the creation of shareholder wealth. The maximum STI payable is 150%
of base salary.

Half of Mr Ellice-Flint's STl is paid to him in the Company’s shares. These shares are subject
o restrictions on sale, transfer and hedging for two years from their date of acquisition
(restrictions may be lifted earlier upon termination of the Managing Director’s employment
depending on the circumstances). The other half of the STl is paid in cash.
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Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(b)

Key management personnel compensation (continued)
Managing Director (continued)

For 2007 performance, Mr Ellice-Flint was awarded an STl payment of $1,950,000 or 115%
of base salary.

Laong-term incentive ("L TI")
The Managing Director receives his LTI in the form of options. Details of the LTI component
of his remuneration are provided in note 30(b).

Service agreement
The Company has entered into a service agreement with the Managing Director. The service
agreement is ongoing until termination by the Company or the Managing Director,

The service agreement provided that the Company may terminate the Managing Director's
employment on giving 24 months notice. The contract was varied in 2006 to reduce the
notice period to 12 months, effective from 1 January 2008. Where the Company exercises
this general right to terminate, it must make a payment 1o the Managing Direclor equivalent to
his base salary for the full notice period.

The Company may terminate the Managing Director's employment at any time for cause. No
payment in lieu of notice will be made in this circumstance.

Mr Ellice-Flint may initiate termination of his service agreement by giving three months notice.
Senior executives
Elements of remuneration

Total remuneration for senior executives is made up of the following components:

Base remuneration — comprising salary and superannuation;
Short-term incentive (“STI") — annual bonuses linked to individual and Company
performance; and

* Long-term incentive (“LTI") — equity grants linked to vesting conditions tested over a
three-year period.

Santos’ executive remuneration structure is consistent with the Company's “pay for
performance” paolicy.

Base rermuneration

Senior executives are paid Total Fixed Remuneration (“TFR”), out of which the Company
makes contributions into their superannuation funds of at least the minimum statutory
amount. They may, if they wish, salary sactifice part of their TFR for additional
superannuation contributions or other benefits such as novated car leases. Senior executives
do not receive any benefits in addition to TFR.

Executive remuneration levels are market-aligned by comparison against similar roles in
ASX 100 energy, materials and utilities companies, excluding BHFP Billiten and Rio Tinto due
to their disproportionately larger size and market capitalisation. This broad industry group is
used as there are too few Australian exploration and production companies of similar size to
Santos for benchmarking purposes.




SANTOS Ltd 21/02/2008 8:53:08 AM PAGE 86/137 rax oervelr

74

SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures {continued)

{b) Key management personnel compensation (continued)

Senior executives {continued)

Short-term incentive (“STI")

Frequency

STl is assessed and paid annually.

Maximum STI

75% of TFR for the CFO and Executive Vice Presidents.
50% of TFR for other senior executives.

Performance
measures

To promote collaboration among senior executives and to focus their
efforts lowards the overall benefit of the Company, 70% of their STl is
based on Company performance. The remaining 30% is based on the
executive's individual petformance.

A range of Company performance metrics is used in order to drive
balanced business performance. These metrics include lagging indicators
to assess the Company's past performance, as well as forward-looking
indicators to ensure the Company is positioning itself well for future
growth, The metrics include reserve growth, reserve replacement cost,
production, margin, new growlh options, shareholder value creation,
people, environment, health and safety and continuous improvement.

Individual performance is assessed against targets set within each
executive's area of responsibility.

Assessment of
performance

Individual performance is assessed by the Managing Director, who makes
a recommendation to the Remuneration Committee.

Company performance is assessed by the Remuneration Committee.
Each metric is assessed against target and assigned a score on a five-
point scale. The average of these scores forms the overall Company
performance score.

The Remuneration Commitiee then makes a recommendation to the
Board as to the amount of STI to be paid to each senior executive {based
on both individual and Company performance).

The Board believes the above methods of assessment are rigorous and
transparent and provide a balanced assessment of the executive's
performance.

Payment method

Cash.

STl awarded in
2007

Company performance against the metrics in 2007 resulied in an average
STI of 80% of maximum payable to all eligible employees.

2007 STI awards made to individual senior executives ranged from 67%
to 84% of maximum. The difference between actual STI paid and
maximum STl was forfeited.
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31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(b)

Key management personnel compensation (continued)
Senior executives {continued)

Long-term incentive (“"LTI")

The Company’s LTl arrangements are designed to link execulive reward with the key
performance drivers which underpin sustainable growth in shareholder value, which
comprises both share price and returns to shareholders.

LTl is delivered in the form of equity participation through the Santos Executive Share Option
Plan (*SESOP") and the Santos Employee Share Purchase Plan ("SESPP"). Participation is
determined by the Board, on recommendation by the Remuneration Committee.

Further details are provided in note 30(b).

Service agreements
The Company has entered into service agreements with the senior executives. The service
agreements are ongoing until termination by the Company or the senior executive.

Mr J T Young's service agreement may be terminated by either party by giving three months
notice. The service agreemenis of all other senior executives may be terminated by the
relevant executive by giving six months notice, or by the Company by giving 12 months
notice. In the case of a Company-initiated termination, the Company may make a payment
in lieu of notice equivalent to the Total Fixed Remuneration the executive would have
received over the notice period.

All senior executives’ service agreements may be terminated immediately for cause,
whereupon no payments in lieu of notice or other termination payments apply.
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(b} Key management personnel compensation (continued)

2007 Short-term employee benefits Post employment Share-based payments® Other  Termin-  Total  Perfom
long-term  ation -ance
benefits® related

Retire- NED
Fees/ Super- ment Share
Name Salary' STl Other® Total  annuation® benefit® Total  SARs  Options Plan Total
$ $ ] 3 3 3 3 $ $ $ 3 %
Directors
Borda, Kenneth Charles 51,704 - - 51,704 10,672 - 10,672 - 68,750 68,750 - - 131,126 -
Dean, Kenneth Alfred 105,575 - - 105,575 54,282 - 54,282 - - 16,550 16,550 - - 176,407 -
Ellice-Flint, John Charles 1,702,684 1950000 1,544 3654638 987357 - 987,357 - 1,898,273 - 1,808,273 - 297,500 - 8,837,768 56
Frankfin, Roy Alaxander 140,512 - - 140,512 3,195 - 3,185 - - - - - - 143,707 -
Gerlach, Stephen 252,229 - 4,788 257,017 111,678 37,925 149,603 - 39,000 35,000 - - 445,620 -
Harding, Richard Michael 39,600 - 39,600 136,440 - 136,440 - 8,800 8,800 - - 184,840 -
Racny. Christopher John' 19,589 - - 19,589 1,763 - 1,763 - - - - - 21,352 -
Sloan, Judith - - - 94,407 11,630 106,037 - 81,500 81,500 - - 187,537 -
Executlves
Andarson, John Hugh 426,902 199,500 1,944 628,346 44,542 - 44542 61,371 35458 - 96,829 119,457 - 889,174 33
Baulderstone, James Laslie 379,833 167,000 1,463 548,296 38,340 - 38,340 55316 33,200 - 89,116 - - 675,752 38
Brown, Trevor John 465,358 163,700 1,944 631,002 17,627 - 17,627 61,826 36,330 - 98,156 57,923 - 804,708 33
Eames, Martyn Edward James 505,228 235,100 1,944 742,272 52,766 - 52,766 135576 2181 - 157,757 22,682 - 975477 40
Kennett, Roger Maxwell 391,597 187,500 1,976 581,073 . 66,082 - 66,082 72549 - - 72,549 234,560 - 054,264 27
Knox, David John 230,403 143,300 - 373,703 21,792 - - 21,792 65429 28,143 - 93,572 - - 485,067 48
Macfariane, Mark Stuart 426,902 180,700 1,944 609,546 44 542 - 44542 78,517 22,682 - 101,199 108,597 - 863,884 33
Wasow, Peter Chnistopher 631,261 406,900, 1944 1,040,105 12,686 - 12,686 158421 - - 158,421 57,732 - 1,268,944 45
Wilkingon, Richard John 411 455 207,800 1,944 621,199 B1,752 - 81,752 118,370 - - 118,370 104,229 - 925,550 kL)
Young, Jonathon Terence 383216 230200 1,944 524,360 12,686 - 12,686 135,084 33,186 - 168,270 98,397 - 904 713 45
Total 6,564,058 4,080,700 23,779 10668537 1,792,609 49,555 1,842,164 043,059 2,100,453 214,600 3,267,112 1,102,077 16,879,850

! Eachof the non-executive Directors receives fees and no salary. Fees include Direclor's fees and Committee fees. The figures shown for Directors’ fees are after fee sacrifice o superannuation andior the NED Share Plan.

Mr K C Borda donated his Director's fees to charity.
2 For the Chairman, Ihis represents the value of car parking provided in the Company’s head office in Adelakie. For ail other Key Management Persormed, ihese amounts represent the cosi of car parking provited, up lo 36 April
2007, On 1 May 2007, the cast of car parking in the Company’s current head office was added to TFR, and from then on executives were required lo oblain parking via salary sacnifice.
T Superannuation cortributions made on behall of non-executive Directors include the Company’s obligations under appiicable Superannualion Guarantee legisiation and any voluntary fee sacrifice to superannuation Amounts

represent either cash contribubions or acluarizl assessment of the benefit provided where relevant.

Y Indexation of accrued retirerment benefits for Non-execulive Directors appointed prior fo 1 January 2004.
?  In accomdance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards, remuneration includes a proportion of the notional value of equity compensation granted or outstanding during the year. The notional value of equily instruments
which do not vest during the reporting penod is determined as al the grant date and is progressively aflocated over the vesting period. The amount included as remuneration is ot refaled to or indicative of the benefit (if any) that

* individual executives may uitimately realise should the equity instruments vest. The notional value of SARs and opbions as at the date of their grant has been determined in accardance with AASE 2 Share-based Payments applying
the Monte Carlo simulation method. Details of the assumptions underlying the valuation are set out in note 30(b) 1o the financial statements. The amounts sef ouf above include a proportion of ihe value of SARs and options

granted during 2007 under the Performance Grant and Growth Awards as well as a proportion of the value of SARs and oplions granted in previous financial years that had not vesled as al T January 2007,
These amounts represent senior executive's Jong service feave accruals as at 31 December 2007.

Payment lo deceased estale.
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31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(b) Key management personnhel compensation (continued)

2006 Short-term employee benefits Post Share-based payments®* Other  Termin- Total  Perdorm-
employ- long- ation ] ance
ment term related
benefits
Feas! wm_ma__ Super-
Name ST Other® Total annuaton®  SARs Options Total
$ $ b 3 b $ $ $ 3 3 %
Directors
Bamett, Peter Charles® 21,660 - - 21,660 1,049 - - - - 23,600
Dean, Kenneth Alfred 149,750 - - 149,750 12,372 - - - - - 162,122 -
Ellice-Flint, John Charlas 1,500,000 1,380,000 6,656 2,886,656 909,954 - 1,406,205 1,406,205 169,650 - 5372465 52
Franklin, Roy Alaxander 33,568 - - 33,568 - - - - - - 33,568 -
Gerlach, Siephen 360,000 - 6,656 366,656 12412 - - - - 379,068
Harding, Richard Michaal 155,000 - - 155,000 12,122 - - . - 167,122
O'Leary, Michaal Anthon § 135,336 - - 135,336 - B - - - 135,336
Recny, Christopher John 27,500 - - 27 500 2475 - - - 28,975 -
Slean, Judith 151,500 - - 151,500 12,372 - - - - 163,872 -
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 360,915 143,800 6,656 511,371 37,896 - 32481 32,181 98,417 - 679,865 26
Brown, Travor John 417,952 135,900 6,656 560,508 18,067 - 32488 32,488 40,252 - 651,315 26
Eames, Mertyn Edward James 452,865 191,300 6,656 650,821 42,385 36,253 22,181 58434 14,640 - 763,450 33
Gouadain, Jacques Elie® 112,761 - 1,664 114 425 3,311 - - - - 14, 469 132,205 -
Macfariane, Mark Stuart 376,849 143,800 5,656 527,305 28,750 42 408 3,038 45446 88,575 - 690,076 27
Wasow, Pater Christopher 581,163 331,500 6,656 919,319 9,240 105,604 - 105,694 38,169 - 1,072,452 41
Wilkinson, Richard Jehn 441,649 165,000 6,656 613,305 74,363 79,205 - 79,205 86,466 - 853,339 29
Wood, Bruca James’ 169,995 - 3,051 173,046 10,416 - - - - 22,689 206,151 -
Youny, Jonathon Terence 606,379 391,400 5,656 1,004 435 12,412 114 855 4458 119,314 75170 - 1,211,331 42
Total 6,054 842 2,882 700 64,618 9,002,161 1,200,496 378415 1,500,552 1,878,967 608,539 37,158 12,727 321

' Eachof the nom-executive Directors receives fees and no salery. Fees include Direchor's fees and Commitiee fees.

¥ Inchudes the cost of car parking provided in the Company's head office in Adelaide kv the CEO and executives.

*  Superannualion conirixiions made on behali of non-executive Directars, with the exception of Mr R A Frankdin, o satisfy the Company’s obligations under appiicable Superannuation Guarartee legisiation. Under Superannuation
Guarantee legisiation, superannuation contributions are nol required to be made on behalf of Mr R A Frankfin 2s he 1s nol a resident of Austraka. Amounts represent efther cash contributions or actuanal essessment of the benefit
provided whene relevant.

* In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards, remuneration includes a proportion of the rotional value of equily compensation granted or oulstanding during the year. The notional value of equily instruments
which do nol vest during the reporting period is delermined as at the grant date and is progressively aflocated over the vesting peniod. The amount included as remuneration is not related to or indicative of the benefit {if any} that
individual executives may ultimalely reafise should the equily instruments vest. The nobonal value of SARs and options as at the date of their grant has been delermined in accordance with AASE 2 Share-based Payments applying
the Monte Carlo simulaton method. Detals of the assumptions underlying the valuation are set oul 1n note 30{bj lo the fnancial slatements.

?  MrP G Bamett ceased as a Direclor on 28 February 2006 and Mr M A (fLeery ceased as a Director on 15 December 2006. Mr C J Reciy held office as a Director untit his death on 4 June 2006,

¢ MrJE Gouadain ceased emphbyment with the Company on 30 March 2006 and the right 1o his 40,000 SARs, al the value of $176,000 lapsed

? MrB.J Wood ceased employment with the Companty on 15 June 2006 and the right lo his 110,600 aptions, af the value of $113,365 forfeited.
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31. Key Management Personnel Disclosuras {continued)

(c) Equity holdings of key management personnel
Options and rights holdings

The movement during the reporting period in the number of rights and options over ordinary shares of the Company held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by
each key management person, including their related parties, is as follows:

2170272008 8:53:09 AM DPAGE

DANTOL Ltd

2007 Vestad Vested
and but not
Options Amount paid exsrcis- axercis-
Balance at exercised / par option Balance Vested Vested at able able at
beginning of rights exarcised/ Other stendof duringthe endofthe  atendof end of
Name the year Granteq'?* vasted® right vested  Changes® - the year year year the year _ tha year
QOptlons
Directors
Ellice-Flint, John Charles 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 -
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 134,044 - - - (28,800) 105,244 - 12,744 12,744 -
Baulderstone, James Leslie - 50,000 - - - 50,000 - - - -
Brown, Trevor John 184,769 - (27,095) $6.38 (29,000} 108,400 - 14,500 14,500 -
(19,274) $6.95
Eamas, Martyn Edward James 50,000 - - - - 50,000 - - - -
Kennett, Roger Maxwell - - - - - - - - - -
Knox, David John - 100,000 - - - 100,000 - - - -
Macfarlane, Mark Stuart 63,700 - - - - 63,700 - - - -
Wasow, Peter Christopher - - - - - - - - - -
Wilkinson, Richard John - - - - - - - - - -
Young, Jonathon Terence 93,200 - - - - 93,200 - - - -
3,025,713 150,000 {46,369) {57,800} 3,071,544 125,000 152,244 152,244 -
Rights
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh - 27,000 - - - 27,000 - - - -
Baulderstons, James Leglie - 36,900 - - - 36,900 - - - -
Brown, Trever John - 27,200 - - - 27,200 - - - -
Eames, Martyn Edward James 39,500 32,000 - - - 71,500 - - - -
Kennatt, Roger Maxwell 28,800 18,200 - - (2,000} 38,000 - - . -
Knox, David John - 50,000 - - - 50,000 - - - -
Macfarlane, Mark Stuart 19,200 27,000 - - {9.600) 36,600 - - - -
Wasow, Peter Christopher 70,200 37,000 - - {23,600) 83,600 - - - -
Wilkinson, Richard John 51,600 28,200 - - (17,700) 62,100 - - - -
Young, Jonathon Terence 52,000 39,000 - - (26,000) 65,000 - - - -
261,300 322,500 - {85,800) 497,900 - - - -
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T With the exception of Mr D J Knox, options granted to executives in the cument year were granted on 1 July 2007, have an expiration date of 1 July 2017 and an exercise prica 0l $14.14. Al the
date of grant, the options granted have a fair value ol $3.32 per option. The options were provided at no cost to the recipients, Providing vesting conditions are met, the options are exercisable
no earlier than 1 January 2010.

?  Options granted to Mr D J Knox in the current year were granted on 3 September 2007, have an expiration date of 3 September 2017 and an exercise price ol $12.81. At the date of grant, all of
the options granted have a fair value of $1.97 per option. The options were provided at no cost fo Mr D J Knox. Providing vesting conditions are met, afl of the oplions are exercisable no earfier
than 3 September 2010.

*  With the exception of Mr D J Knox, SARs granted to executives in the current year were granted on 1 July 2007, have an expiration date of 1 July 2017, and vest with ths recipient for no
consideration. Al the date of grant, 130,100 of the SARs granted have a lair value of $9.95 per SAR, and 130,100 of the SARs granted have a fair value of $12.78 per SAR,

¢ 5ARSs granted fo Mr D J Knox in the current year were granted on 3 September 2007, have an expiration date of 3 September 2017, and vest with Mr D J Knox for no consideration, Atthe date
of grant, afl of the SARs granted have a fair value of $9.16 per SAR. .

*  Each option exercised or SAR vested results in the issue of one ordinary share of the Company fo the recipient. There are no amounts unpaid on the shares issued as a result of the exercise of
eplions and vesting of SARs.

®  Other changes may include the lapse of options on the expiry of the exercise period, reductions in SARs entitlements due to performance conditions not being met, forfeiture of SARS when
service conditions are not met, or the removal of an employee's equiy holding from the key management personne! disclosure when they terminate employment with the Company.

Details regarding the service and performance conditions that must be met before the options and SARs vest with the recipient are included in note 30(b).
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{c} Equity holdings of key management personnel {continued)
Options and rights holdings (continued)
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2006 Vested Vested
and but not
Options Amount paid exBercis- axers-
Balance at exercisad / per option Balance Vested Vested at able able at
beginning of rights exercised/ Other atendof  duringthe endofthe  atend of end of
Name the year Grantad'?? vosted® right vested Changes®  the yoar year year the year  the year
Optlons
Directors
Ellice-Flint, John Chades - 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 - - - -
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 70,344 63,700 - - - 134,044 - 12,744 12,744 -
Brown, Travor John 333,369 65,500 (200,000) $6.52 {14,500} 184,769 14,500 60,869 60,869 -
Eames, Martyn Edward James 50,000 - - - - 50,000 - - - -
Gouadain, Jacques Elie 200,000 - (200,000 $6.52 - - - - - -
Macfadane, Mark Stuart - 63,700 - - - 63,700 - - - -
Wasow, Peter Christopher - - - - - - - - - -
Wilkinson, Richard John - - - - - - - - . .
Wood, Bruce James® 210,985 - (45,085) $6.38 (138,250} - 11,100 - - -
{27,650} $8.46
Young, Jonathon Terence - 93,200 - B 93,200 - - - -
864 698 2,786,500 {472,735} (152,750) 3,025,713 25,600 73,613 73,613 -
Rights
Exscutives
Andersen, John Hugh 8,600 - {4,300) - (4,300 - 4,300 - - -
Brown, Trevor John - - - - - - - - - -
Eames, Martyn Edward James 19,600 19,800 - - - 39,500 - - - -
Gouadain, Jacques Elie’ 60,000 - (10,000} - {50,000) - 10,000 - - -
Macfarlane, Mark Stuart 28,800 - {4,800) - (4,800) 18,200 4,800 - - -
Wasow, Peter Christopher 70,800 23,000 {11,800) - (11,800) 70,200 11,800 - - -
Wilkinson, Richard John 53,100 16,200 (8,850) - (8,850) 51,600 8,850 - - -
Wood, Bruce James - - - - - - - - - -
Young, Jonathon Terence 78.000 - {13,000) - (13,000) 52,000 13,000 - - -
318,900 59,100 (52,750} (92,750) 232,500 52,750 - - -

" 2,500,000 options were granted o Mr J C Elfice-Flint on 4 May 2008, which have an expiration date of 3 May 2016 and, an exercise price of $11.36. At the date of grant, 500,000 of the options
granted have a fair value of $1.77 per option, 1,000,000 options have a fair value of $1.94 per option, and 1,000,000 options have a fair value of $2.05 per option. The options were granted at no
costto Mr J C Ellice-Flint. Providing performance conditions are met, 500,000 of the options are exercisable no earlier than 26 August 2007, 1,000,000 of the options are exercisable no earfier
than 26 August 2008, and 1,000,000 of the options are exercisable no earfier than 28 August 2008,

?  Options granted fo executives in the current year were granted on 24 October 2006, have an expiration date of 24 October 20186, an exercise price of $10.48, and a fair vaius of $0.76 af grant
date. The opfions were provided at no cost to the recipients. Providing performance conditions are met, the oplions are exercisable no ealier than 1 January 2009.

*  SARs granted fo executives in the curren! year were granted on 24 October 2006, have an expiration date of 24 October 2018, vest with the racipient for no consideration, and have a lair value of
$2.88 at grant date. The SARs were provided at no cost to the recipients. Providing performance conditions are mel, the SARs vest no earfier than 1 January 2008,
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*  Each option exercised or SAR vested resulls in the issue of one ordinary share of the Company to the recipient. There are no amounts unpaid on the shares issued as a rasult of the exarcise of
options and vesting of SARs.

¥ Other changes may include the lapsa of aptions on the expiry ol the exercise period, reductions in SARs entitlements due to performance conditions not being met, forfeiture of SARs when
service conditions are not met, or the removal of an employee’s equity holding from the key management personnel disclosure when they tarminate employment with the Company.

®  MrBJWood ceased employment with the Company on 15 June 2006 and the right to his 110,600 oplions at the value of $113,365 forfeited.

” MrJ E Gouadain ceased employment with the Company on 30 March 2006 and the right i his 40,000 SARs at the value of $176,000 lapsed.

Details regarding the service and performance conditions that must be met bafore the options or SARs vest with the recipient are included in note 3Nk,
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31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(c}

Equity holdings of key management personnel (continued)

Share holdings

The movement during the reporting period in the number of shares of the Company held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person,
including their related parties, is as follows:

2007 Balance
held
Balance at Received on Balance nominally
beginning Granted as axarcisa Received on Gther at end atend
Name of the year compensation of opticns vasting of rights Redeemed changes of the year of the year

Crdinary shares —fully paid
Diractors

Borda, Kenneth Charles - - - - - 35,207 35207 -
Dean, Kenneth Alfred 3,000 - - - - 1,145 4,145 -
Ellice-Flint, John Charles 4,037,940 - - - - 75,404 4,113,344 -
Franklin, Roy Alaxander - - - - - - - .
Gerlach, Stephen 44 880 - - - - 4,330 49210 -
Harding, Richard Michael - - - - - 608 608 .
Slean, Judith 5,000 - - - - 5,639 10638 -
Executives .
Anderson, John Hugh 6,175 - - - - 68 6,243 -
Baulderstona, James Leaslia - - - - - - - -
Brown, Trevor John 200,000 . 46,369 - - - 246,369 -
Eames, Martyn Edward James - - . - - - - -
Kennett, Roger Maxwell 59,795 - - - - - 59,795 -
Knox, David John - - - - - - - -
Macfardane, Mark Stuart 3,204 - - - - - 3,204 -
Wasow, Peter Christopher 27,934 - - - - - 27934 -
Wilkinsen, Richard John 21,441 - - - - - 21,441 -
Young, Jonathon Terence 280,183 - - - - {100,000} 180,183 C-
4,680,552 - 46,368 - - 22 401 4,758,322 -
Redeemable convertible preference shares
Directors
Ellice-Flint, John Charles 225 - - - - - 225 -
Sloan, Judith 195 - - - - - 195 -
420 - - - - - 420 -
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Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(c)

mnc.é holdings of key management personnel {continued)

Share holdings {continued)
2008 Balance
held
Balance at Receivad on Balance nominally
beginning Granted as oxafcise Received on Other at end atend
Name of the year compensation of options vosting of rights Redeemed changes' of the year of the year
Ordlnary shares <ully paid
Diroctors
Bamett, Peter Chartes* 12,394 - - - - (12,394) - -
Dean, Kenneth Alfrad 3,000 - - - - - 3,000 -
Ellice-Fint, John Charles 4,042,243 - - - - (4,303} 4,037,940 -
Franklin, Roy - - - - - - - -
Gerlach, Stephen 43,856 - - - - 1,024 44,880 -
Harding, Richard Michael - - - - - - - -
O'Leary, Michaal Anthony? 4,808 . - - - (4,898) - -
Recny, Christophar John? - - - - - - - -
Sloan, Judith 5,000 - - - - . 5,000 -
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 1,812 - - 4,300 - 63 6,175 -
Brown, Trevor John - - 200,000 - - - 200,000 -
Eames, Martyn Edward James - - - - - - - -
Gouadain, Jacques Elie® 12,216 - 200,000 10,000 - (222,216) - -
Macfadane, Mark Stuart 3,204 - - 4,800 - (4.800) 3204 -
Wasow, Peter Christopher 16,134 - - 11,800 - . 27,934 -
Wilkinson, Richard Jechn 12,581 - - 8,850 - - 21,441 -
Wood, Bruce James? 57,290 - 72,735 - - {130,025) . -
Young, Jonathon Terence 267,183 - - 13,000 - - 280,183 -
4,481,821 - 472,735 52,750 - (377.549) 4,629,757 -
Redeemable convertible preference shares
Ellice-Flint, John Charles 225 - - - - - 225 -
Sloan, Judith 195 - - - - - 185 -
420 - - - - - 420 -

Company.

2006.

Mr J E Gouadain ceased employment with the Company on 30 March 2006 and Mr B J Wood ceased employment with the Company on 15 June 2006.

Other changes include the removal of a Director's or employee’s equity holding from the key management personnel disclosure where they cease to be a Direclor or cease employment with the

Mr P C Barnett ceased as a Director on 28 February 2006 and Mr M A Q'leary ceased as a Director on 15 December 2006. Mr C J Recny held office as a Director until his death on 4 June
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31. Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)
{d) Loans to key management personnel

There have been ne loans made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly, by the Group
or any of its subsidiaries at any time throughout the year with any key management person,
including their related parties.

32. Related Parties

Identity of related parties
Santos Ltd and its controlled entities engage in a variety of related pary transactions in the
ordinary course of business. These transactions are conducted on normal terms and conditions.

Details of related party transactions and amounts are set out in:

Note 5 as to interest received from/paid to controlled entities;

Note 9 as to tax related balances and other amounts owing by controlled entities;
Notes 19 and 20 as to amounts owing to controiled entities;

Note 20 as to guarantees by Santos Ltd of the financing facilities of controlled entities;
Note 21 as to Non-executive Directors’ retirement benefits;

Notes 17 and 25 as to investments in controlled entities;

Note 27 as to interests in joinl ventures; and

Note 31 as to disclosures relating to key management personnel.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 3000
33. Remuneration of Auditors
The auditor of Santos Ltd is Ernst & Young.
Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst
& Young (Australia):
An audit or review of the financial report of the
entity and any other entity in the consolidated
group 1,181 816 827 545
Other services:
Assurance 244 10 183 10
Taxation - 3 - 3
Other - 4 - 4
1,425 833 1,010 562
Armounts received or due and receivable by
overseas related practices of Ernst & Young
(Australia) for:
Taxation 15 12 - -
Other services - 38 - -
15 50 - -

Amounts received or due and receivable by non

Emst & Young firms for:
External audit services - 73 - 49
Other services - - - -
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Segment Information
The Group operates predominantly in one business, namely the exploration, development, production, transportation and marketing of hydrocarbons. Revenue is
derived from the sale of gas and liquid hydrocarbons and the transportation of crude oil.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items mainly comprise dividend reveriue, interest-eaming assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Geographic segments
The Group operates primarily in Australia but also has international operations in Indonesia, Papua New Guinea, Vietnam, India, Bangladesh, Kyrgyz Republic, and

Egypt.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS DISCONTINUED TOTAL OPERATIONS
Australia International Total OPERATIONS
2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Primary Repaoriing $milllon $million $million $miltion $million $million $million Smillicn $million Smillion
Geographic segments ’
Revenue

Revenue from Australian customers 895.3 906.8 - - 895.3 906.8 - - 895.3 906.8

Revenue from International customers 1,480.7 1,749.9 131.5 61.4 1,682.2 1,811.3 30.1 61.2 1,622.3 1.872.5
Total revenue 2356.0 28567 1315 61.4 24875 27181 30.1 61.2 25176  2,779.3
Results
Segment results 909.9 1,305.5 (45.3) (132.8) 864.6 11727 (65.8) {27.8) 798.8 1,144 9
Unallocated corporate expenses {59.5) (57.2) - - (59.5) {57.2}
Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT") 8051 1,115.5 {65.8) (27.8} 7393 1,087.7
Unallocated net financing (costs)fincome (139.1) (123.5) 08 0.5 {138.3) {123.0)
Profit/{loss) before tax 666.0 992.0 (65.0) (27.3) 601.0 964.7
Income tax expense {159.8) {321.1) {0.8) (0.2) (160.4) (321.3)
Net profit/{loss) for the period 506.2 670.9 (65.6) (27.5) 440.8 843.4
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34. Segment Information (continued)

Primary reporting
Geographic segments (continued)

Non-cash expenses
Depreciation and depletion
Unallocated corporate depreciation and depletion

Total depreciation and depletion
Exploration and evaluation expensed

Net impairment loss on oil and gas assets
Total non-cash expenses

Acquisition of non-current assets

Controlied entities

Cil and gas assets, property, plant and equipment

Unallocated corporate acquisition of of and gas assets,
property, plant and equipment

Toflal acquisition of non-current assets

Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Secondary reporting
Business segments

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

CONTINUING OPERATIONS DISCONTINUED TOTAL OPERATIONS
Australla International Total OPERATIONS

2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

$milllon $million $milllon $million $million $million $million Smillion $miilion $million
707.2 625.8 270 26.6 734.2 B852.4 - 241 734.2 676.5
251 156.7 - - 251 15.7
759.3 668.1 - 24.1 759.3 6922
131.8 91.0 94.3 1778 2261 2888 87 79.0 2348 3478
- 78 - 34 - 11.2 - 5.1 - 16.3
885.4 948.1 8.7 108.2 894 1 1,056.3
124 - 77.0 10.5 894 10.5 - - 894 10.5
1,095.4 1,167.5 193.6 274 .9 1,289.0 14424 - 111.2  1,289.0 1,553.6
424 59.1 - - 424 59,1
14208 1,812.0 - 111.2 14208 1,623.2
6,036.7 57220 634.5 540.7 8.671.2 6,262.7 - 2108 66712 64735
£649.0 4294 - - 649.0 4294
7,320.2 6,692.1 - 2108 73202 69029
1,718.9 14259 149.8 241.0 1,868.7 1,666.9 - 16.8 1,868.7 16837
2,141.0 1,883.7 - - 2,141.0 18837
40007 3,530.6 - 16.8 4009.7 35474

As described above, the Group operates predeminantly in one business. Accordingly there are no additional business segment disclosures to be made,
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CONSOLIDATED
2007 2006
$million Smillion

Server

SANTOS LTD

2007
$million

2006
$million

Commitments for Expenditure

The Group has the following commitments for
expenditure:

{a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at balance

date for which no amounts have been

provided in the financial statements,

payable:
Not later than one year 3242 211.4
Later than one year but not later than five

years 89.0 116.8

Later than five years - 3.9

199.1

53.8

107.4

54.4

413.2 332.1

252.9

163.7

Santos Ltd has guaranteed the capital
commitments of certain controlled entities
(refer note 36 for further details).

(b) Minimum exploration commitments

Minimum exploration ecommitments for which

no amounts have been provided in the

financial statements or capital commitments,

payable:
Not later than one year 350.1 133.0
Later than one year but not later than five

years 185.4 741

Later than five years 29.1 -

486.2

10.6

21.9

14.1

564.6 207.1

56.8

36.0

The Group has certain obligations to perform
minimum  exploration work and expend
minimum amounts of money pursuant to the
terms of the granting of petroleum exploration
permits in order to maintain rights of tenure.
These commitments may be varied as a result
of renegotiations of the terms of the
exploration permits, licences or contracts or
alternatively upon their relinquishmeni, The
minimum exploration commitments are less
than the "normal level of exploration
expenditures expected o be undertaken by
Santos Lid and its controlled entities.

{c) Lease commitments

Non-cancellable operating lease remtals are
payable as follows:
Not later than one year 92.2 99.8
Later than one year but not later than five
years 204.5 266.0
Later than five years 52.8 75.0

38.7

81.1
342

45.8

1121
39.7

349.5 440.8

154.0

197.6
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Commitments for Expenditure (continued)

(d)

(e}

The Group leases floating production, storage and offtake facilities, floating storage offloading
facilities and mobile offshore production units under operating leases. The leases typically run
for a period of four to six years, and may have an option to renew after that date.

The Group also leases building office space and a warehouse under operating leases, The
leases are generally for a period of ten years, with an option to renew the |ease afler that date.
The lease payments typically increase by 5.0% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2007 the Group recognised $59.3 million
(2006: $73.2 million) as an expense in the income statement in respect of operating leases.

Commitment on removal of share cap
. Pursuant to a Deed of Undertaking to the Premier of South Australia dated 16 October 2006

and as a consequence of the enactment of the Santos Limited (Deed of Undertaking) Act
2007 on 29 November 2007, Santos has agreed to:

» continue to make payments under its existing Social Responsibility and Community
Benefits Program specified in the Deed totalling $60.0 million over a ten year period
from the date the legistation was enacted. As al 31 December 2007; approximately
$59.4 million remains to be paid over the next ten years;

= continue to maintain the South Australian Cooper Basin asset's Head Office and
Operational Headquarters together with other rales in South Australia for ten years
subsequent to the date the legisiation was enacted. At 31 December 2007, if this
condition had not been met, the Company would have been liable to pay approximately
$100.0 million to the State Government of South Australia,

Santos is required to make these payments only if the State Government of South Australia
does not reintroduce a shareholder cap on the Company's shares or introduce any other
restriction on or in respect of the Company’s Board or senior management which have an
adverse discriminatory effect in their application to the Company relative to other companies
domiciled in South Australia.,

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2008
$million Smillion $million Smillion

Remuneration commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries
and other remuneration under the long-term
employment contracts in existence at the
reporting date but not recognised in
liabilities, payable:

Not later than one year 8.2 3.3 8.2 3.3

Amounts included as remuneration commitments include commitments arising from the
service contracts of directors and executives referred to in the Remuneration Report of the
Directors Report that are not recognised as liabilites and are not included in the
compensalion of key management personnel.
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million $million $million Smillion

Contingent Liabilities

The Directors are of the opinion that provisions
are not required in respect of these matters, as it
is not probable that a future sacrifice of economic
benefits will be required or the amount is not
capable of reliable measurement.

Santes Lid and its controlled entities have the
following contingent liabilities arising in respect of:

The Group:
Performance guarantees 23.2 15.9 10.2 10.1
Actual and possible legal claims and
proceedings 12.1 3.0 2.4 2.4

The Group's share of contingent liabilities of
joint venture operations:

Performance guarantees 5.8 56 2.9 2.8
Litigation and proceedings - 8.0 - 1.1
41.1 325 15.5 16.4

Legal advice in relation to the actual and possible legal claims and proceedings referred to above
indicates that on the basis of available information, any liability in respect of these claims is unlikely
to exceed $11.3 million on a consolidated basis,

A number of the Australian interests of the Group are located within areas the subject of one or
rmore claims or applications for native title determination. Whatever the outcome of those claims or
applications, it is not believed that they will significantly impact the Group's asset base.
Compliance with the “future act’ provisions of the Native Title Act 13933 (Cth) can delay the grant of
mineral and petroleum tenements and consequenily impact generally the timing of exploration,
development and production operations. An assessment of the impact upon the timing of particular
operations may require consideration and determination of complex legal and factual issues.

Guarantees provided by Santos Ltd for borrowings in respect of controlled entities are disclosed in
note 20.

Santos Ltd has provided parent company guarantees in respect of:

{a) the funding and performance obligations of a number of subsidiary companies, relating 1o:
+ a floating storage and offleading facilities agreement for the Sampang PSC;
* a mobile offshore production unit agreement for the Madura PSC;
- performance obligations under production sharing contracts; and

" (b) a subsidiary company’s obligations to meet distribution charges for gas retail customers.

A subsidiary company has provided a letter of performance guarantee in respect of the
performance obligations of its subsidiary company relating to a production sharing contract.

A subsidiary company has provided a letter of comfort in respect of payment obligations of
associated entities.

The total expenditure commitment under these transactions and which are the subject of a parent
company guarantee is $236.1 million,
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Contingent Liabilities (continued)

Sidoarjo mudtlow incident

While the Board has made provision in relation to this incident, the provision reflects an assumption
that a resolution will ultimately be reached as between the Government, Lapindo Brantas Inc, the
non-operating PSC parties (Santos Brantas Pty Ltd (“STOB") and PT Prakarsa Brantas) and all
other relevant parties as to the costs related to long-term mud management options, proposed
cosis of infrastructure relocation and any third party claims. 1 is also assumed that the present
conditions at the site of the incident will remain stable or improve over the langer term. These
assumptions are based upon an updaled assessment of inforrnation currerdly available,
experience and events since May 2008 (including the WALHI decision) and progress associated
with managing the nmud fiow.

With the mud flow continuing, the complexity of the incident, and the need to consult with a number
of interested parties (both public and private), the situation rermains dynamic. Accordingly, there is
continuing uncertainty surrounding the incident and its cost and other implications for the Group.
There remains the possibility that the resolution of these uncerainties may ultimately be on a
different basis than presently assumed, which could result in the ultimate costs to be bome by
STOB being significantly different from the current estimate.

Further details of the Sidoarjo mudflow incident are provided in note 3.
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37. Deed of Cross Guarantee

Pursuant to Class Order 98/1418, the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed below are relieved from the
Corporations Act 2007 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of their financial reports.

As a condition of the Class Order the Company and each of the listed subsidiaries (the “Closed
Group™) entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee on 8 December 2006. The effect of the Deed is
that the Company has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of any of the
subsidiaries under cerlain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. The subsidiaries have also
given a similar guarantee in the event that the Company is wound up.

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are;

Alliance Petroleum Australia Pty Ltd
Bridge Oil Developments Ply Limited
Reef Oil Pty Ltd

Santos (BOL) Piy Lid

Santos Darwin LNG Pty Ltd

Santos Offshore Pty Ltd

Santos Petroleum Management Pty Ltd
Santos Petroleum Pty Lid

Santos QNT Pty Ltd

Santos QNT (No. 1) Pty Ltd

Santos QNT (No. 2) Pty Ltd

Vamagas Pty Lid

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet of the entities that are members of the
Closed Group are as follows:

CLOSED GROUP

2007 2006

Smiltion $million
Consolidated Income Statement
Profit before tax 1,121.0 271.8
Income tax expense (103.1) (213.6)
Profit after tax 1,017.9 58.2
Retained earnings at the beginning of the period 1,163.3 1,377.3
Dividends to shareholders (268.6) {268.5)
Share buy-back (231.2) -
Share-based payment transactions 5.2 26
Actuarial gainf{loss) on defined benefit plan, net of tax 4.4 (6.3)

Retained earnings at the end of the period 1,621.0 1,163.3
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Deed of Cross Guarantee (continued)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Other

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Receivables

Exploration and evaluation assets

Qil and gas assets

Other land, buildings, plant and equipment
Other investments

Deferred tax assets

Other

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Deferred income

Current tax liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred incorme

Interesi-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

Fax
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CLOSED GROUP

2007 2006
$million $million
80.0 85.7
420.4 336.5
215.7 134.7
5.6 17.8
701.7 574.7
61.5 390.0
169.7 28.4
3,730.2 38251
102.9 117.2
2,672.8 2.038.2
8.0 16.2
5.9 9.0
6,751.0 6,424.1
7,452.7 6,998.8
433.3 708.7
12.0 6.3
28.7 208.1
43.2 66.9
517.2 990.0
8.8 11.3
2,294.8 1,922.4
149.7 186.1
463.0 464 .8
2,918.3 2,584.6
3.433.5 3,574.6
4,019.2 3.424.2
2,331.6 2,254.4
{(3.4) 6.5
1.691.0 1,163.3
4,019.2 34242
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Financial Risk Management

Exposure to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, commodity price risk, credit risk, and liquidity
risk arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's overall financial risk
management strategy is to seek {0 ensure that the Group is able to fund its business plans,
Derivative financial instruments may be used to hedge exposure 1o fluciuations in foreign exchange
rates, interest rates, and commodity prices,

The Group uses various methods to measure the types of risk to which it is exposed. These
methods include Cash Flow at Risk analysis in the case of interest rate, foreign exchange and
commodity price risk, and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (“Treasury”™) under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions and recognised assets and
llabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
risk is measured using cash flow forecasting and Cash Flow at Risk analysis.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk principally through the sale of liquid petraleurn
products denominated in US dollars, US dollar barrowings and US dollar expenditure. In
order to hedge this foreign currency risk, the Group has from time to time entered into
forward foreign exchange, foreign currency swap and foreign currency option contracits,

All US dollar denominated borrowings are either designated as a hedge of US dollar
denominated investments in foreign operations (2007: US%$1,199.6 million; 2006:
US5825.6 million) ar swapped using cross-currency swaps to Australian dallars. As a result,
there were no net foreign currency gains or losses arising from translation of US
denominated dollar borrowings recognised in the income statements in 2007.

The Group’s risk management policy is o hedge between 0% and 50% of forecasted cash
flows in US dollars for the current financial year.

The following table demonstrates the estimated sensitivity to a 10% increase/decrease in the
US dallar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, on post-tax profit and equity.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million  Smilion  $million  $million

Impact on post-tax profit;

AUD/USD +10% (84.8) {99.8) - -

AUD/JSD -10% 103.6 122.0 - -
Impact on equity:

AUD/USD +10% (120.7) {137.4) - -

AUD/USD -10% 139.6 159.5 - -

{b) Market risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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38. Financial Risk Management

(b)

Market risk (continued)

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that the majorily of its exposure to changes in imerest
rates on borrowings is on a floating rate basis. Interest rate swaps, denominated in
Australian dollars and US dollars, have been entered into as fair value hedges of medium-
term notes and long-term notes respectively. The swaps have malurities ranging from 1 to
20 years, aligned with the maturity of the related notes. At 31 December 2007, ithe Group
had interest rate swaps with a nofional contract amount of $1,067.7 million (2006:
$615.4 million).

The net fair value of swaps at 31 December 2007 was $67.3 million (2006: $10.6 million),
comprising assets of $77.2 million and liabilities of $9.9 million. These amounts were
recognised as fair value derivatives.

Based upon the average balance of gross debt during the year, if interest rates changed by
-I+1%, with all other variables held constant, the estimated impact on post-tax profit and
equity would have been:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
$million $million $miilion Smillion

Impact on post-tax profit:

Interest rates +1% (11.7) {(10.6) - -

Interest rates -1% 11.7 10.6 - -
Impact on equity:

Interest rates +1% (11.7) {10.6) - -

Interest rates -1% 11.7 10.6 - -

Commodity price risk exposure

The Group is exposed to commodity price fluctuations through the sale of petrcleum
products denominated in US dollars. The Group may enter into commodity crude oil price
swap and option contracts to manage its commodity price risk.

At 31 December 2007 the Group has no open oil price swap contracts (2006: nil).

If the US dallar oil price changed by 10% from the average oil price during the year, with all
other variables held constant, the estimated impact on post-tax profit and equity would have
been:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2006 2007 2006
Smillion Emillion $million Smillion

Impact on post-tax profit:

US dollar oil price +10% 116.6 129.8 - -

US dolar oil price -10% {118.6) {129.8) - -
Irmpact on equity:

US dollar oil price +10% 116.6 129.8 - -

US dollar oil price -10% (116.6)  (129.8) - -
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Financial Risk Management {continued)

(e)

Fair values (continued)

Basis for determining fair values
The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the
fair values of financial instruments:

Trade and other receivables
The camrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables is a reasonable
approximation of their fair values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables,

Available-for-sale financial assets
The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is determined by reference to their quoted
bid price at the reporting date.

Derivatives

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated by discounting estimated future cash flows
based on the terms of maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for a similar
instrument at ihe reporting date. Where these cash flows are in a foreign currency the
present value is converted to Australian dollars at the foreign exchange spot rate prevailing
at reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash
flows, discounied at the market rate of interest at the reporting date., Where these cash
flows are in a foreign currency the present value is converted to Australian dollars at the
foreign exchange spot rate prevailing at reporting date. :

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based
on the market vield curve at the reporting date. The dealt credit spread is assumed to be the
same as the market rate for the credit as at reporting date as allowed under AASB 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The interest rates including credit
spreads used to determined fair value were as follows:

2007 2006

Derivatives 5.4% -7.8% 6.2% - 7.0%
Loans and borrowings 58%-9.1% 6.1% - 9.0%
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38. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credil exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables and committed transactions, and represents the potential
financial loss if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. Management has credit policies
in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The majority of
Santos’s gas contracts are spread across major Australian energy retailers and industrial
users. Contracts exist in every mainland state whilst the largest customer accounts for less
than 20% of contracted gas.

The Group confrols credit risk by seftting minimum creditworthiness requirements of
counterparties, which for banks and financial institutions is a Standard and Poor's rating of A
or better. If customers are independently rated these ratings are used, otherwise the credit
quality of the customer is assessed by taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors including credit support from a third party. Individual risk limits
for banks and financial institutions are set based on external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the Board. Limits for custormers are determined within contract terms., The daily
nomination of gas demand by customers and the utilisation of credit limits by custormers is
manitored hy line management.

In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group does not hold collateral, nor
does it securitise its trade and other receivables.

At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group and financial instruments are spread amongst a number of financial institutions to
minimise the risk of default by counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of financial
assels of the Group, excluding investments, which have been recognised on the balance
sheet.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk managemeni implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group aims at maintaining
flexibility in funding to meet ongoing operational requirerments, exploration and development
expenditure, and small to medium sized opportunistic projects and investments, by keeping
committed credit facilities available.

The following table analyses the contractual maturities of the Group's financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows comprising principal and interest repayments, except for interest
rate swaps. Estimated variable interest expense is based upon appropriate yield curves
existing as at 31 December 2007.
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38. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk {continued)

Fax Server

Consolidated Less than 1 1-2 2-5 More than
year years years 5 years
$million Emillion $million $million
2007
Non-derivative tinancial liabilities
Trade and other payables 661.4 - - -
Bank loans 41.1 40.8 259.2 133.7
Commercial paper 65.0 - - -
Mediurm-term notes 27.8 6.5 196 469.5
Long-term notes 75.2 111.7 502.9 1,151.4
Derivative financial liabllities
Interest rate swaps (9.5) ~ (21.3) (31.9) (27.0)
861.0 137.7 749.8 1,727.6
2006
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 441.8 - - -
Bank loans 471 34.3 159.2 140.6
Commercial paper 130.0 - - -
Medium-term notes 7.6 27.8 19.5 4759
Long-term notes 183.3 42.4 298.2 541.6
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps {0.8) {2.6) (8.2) (1.8)
809.0 101.9 468.7 1,156.3
Santos Ltd
2007
Trade and other payables 642.9 - - -
Amounts owing to controlled entities - - - 24782
642.9 - - '2.478.2
2006
Trade and other payables 562.9 - - -
Amounts owing to controlled entities - - - 2.583.6
562.9 - - 2,583.6

Amounts owing to controlled entitias are shown at their camying value as any interest charged on the loans is added
to the |lcan balance. The loans are made in the ordinary course of business on normal market terms and conditions
and are not repayable for & minimum of 9 years.

Fair values

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company are recognised on the
balance sheets at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policies in note 1, except
for long-term notes that do not form part of an interest rate swap, and bank borrowings,
which are recognised at face value. The carying value of these long-term notes is
US$156.5 million and their fair value is estimated at US$163.3 million based on discounting
the future cash flows excluding the credit spread at the time of issue. The discount rate
used is the interest rate swap rate for the remaining term to maturity of the note as at
31 December 2007.

The carrying value -of the bank borrowings approximates fair value as it is a floating rate
instrurment.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
for the year ended 31 December 2007

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Santos Lid (“ihe Company”™), we siate that:

1. In the opinion of the Directors:

{a) the financial statements and notes of the Company and of the consolidated entity are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial
position as at 31 December 2007 and of their performance for the year ended an
that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able 1o pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable.

2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors
in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 20071 for the financial year- ending
31 December 2007,

3. As at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds te believe that the members of the
Closed Group identified in note 37 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or
may become subject, by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the Company and those
members of the Closed Group pursuant io Class Order 98/1418.

Dated this 21 day of February 2008

On behalf of the Board:

Director Director

Adelaide
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
To the members of Santos Lid

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Santos Ltd, which comprises the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2007, and the income statemert, cash flow statement and statement of
recognised income and expense for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising
the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial
year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying
appropriate accounting peolicies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. In note 1(a}, the directors also state that the financial report, comprising the financial
statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial reporl. The procedures selected depend on our judgernent, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. [n making
those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial report. .

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001,
We have given 1o the direclors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, signed
on 21 February 2008, The Auditor's Independence Declaration would have been expressed in the
same terms if it had been given to the directors at the date this auditor’s report was signed. In
addition to our audit of the financial report, we were engaged 1o undertake the services disclosed in
the notes fo the financial statements. The provision of these services has not impaired our
independence.
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Auditor's Opinion
In our opinion,

1. the financial report of Santos Ltd is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Santos Ltd and the consoclidated
entity at 31 Decemnber 2007 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;
and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in note 1{a).

Emst & Young

RJ Curtin
Parner
Adelaide

21 February 2008
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